CORPORATION OF THE
TOWNSHIP OF BILLINGS
AGENDA
June 15, 2020 4:00 p.m.

Electronic Meeting

**Members of the public who wish to attend the meeting may email
mbonenfant@billingstwp.ca by 3:00 p.m. on June 15th for a meeting invitation. A
computer/tablet/mobile phone and internet connection, or a telephone, are required. **

1.

OPEN

2.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

3.

DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST

4.

ADOPTION OF MINUTES
a) June 2, 2020
b) June 2, 2020 special

5.

DELEGATIONS
a) Sandi Hurcomb re: Economic
Development Committee

6.

COMMITTEE REPORTS

7.

OLD BUSINESS

8.

NEW BUSINESS
a) Kagawong Market
b) 2020-24 Dog By-law
c) Waterfront Project – Small Craft Basin
construction RFP award
d) Old Mill Heritage Centre update
e) Resumption of Committees

9.

CORRESPONDENCE
a) Public Health Sudbury and Districts re:
Kagawong Beach and COVID-19
guidelines for public beaches
b) Manitoulin-Sudbury District Services
Board re: COVID-19 interim funding
and operation policies for EarlyON and
child care
c) Municipality of Huron Shores re:
regional broadband

d) City of Brantford re: Essential Workers’
Day
e) Tay Township re: Great Lakes water
levels
f) MP Carol Hughes re: Commercial Rent
Assistance Program
g) MP Carol Hughes re: Universal Basic
Income
10.

INFORMATION
a) Manitoulin-Sudbury District Services
Board 2019 consolidated financial
statements and 2020 first quarter report

11.

ACCOUNTS FOR PAYMENT

12.

CLOSED SESSION

13.

CONFIRMING BY-LAW

14.

ADJOURNMENT

Memorandum
To: Mayor and Council, CAO/Clerk
cc: Staff, Public
From: Megan Bonenfant
Date: June 12, 2020
RE: June 15, 2020 Electronic Council Meeting
5. Delegations
Sandi Hurcomb has requested to make a delegation to Council regarding the Economic Development
Committee (see attached).
8. New Business
a) Kagawong Market
The Kagawong Market has been run by volunteers for the township for the past 15+ summers. As with
most things, COVID-19 forced the ‘pause’ button on this market. Guidance from the province on exactly
what markets are permitted to operate yet is somewhat lacking. Initially, only food vendors were
permitted to operate, however, Farmers Markets Ontario has reportedly received confirmation from the
Ontario Ministry of Agriculture and Rural Affairs that artisan and craft vendors may now operate, provided
that the majority of vendors are selling food products. Regardless of the products being sold, markets are
subject to stringent guidelines with respect to physical distancing and hygiene (see attached). In order to
adhere to these guidelines, and in light of the planned construction at the Small Craft Harbour, the
Kagawong Market will need to relocate for the 2020 season. The Old Church on the Hill/Dog Park area
has been identified as a suitable alternative location. The market coordinator is in the process of
reaching out to market vendors to determine if they are interested in participating for the 2020 season;
some have indicated that they will not be participating in any market this season, but would be back in
2021.
In the meantime, two local businesses have announced their intentions to host markets. At least one of
these markets was initiated because the proprietors were erroneously informed that the Kagawong
Market had been cancelled. They have reported a positive response from prospective vendors and
customers.
Other markets around the Island are in a similar state of uncertainty, as reported in the Manitoulin
Expositor on June 10.
At this point in time, staff are seeking direction from Council whether to proceed with planning for the
annual Kagawong Market in the identified alternative location for the 2020 season.
b) 2020-24 Dog By-law
The By-law Enforcement Officer has drafted an updated dog by-law for Council’s consideration (attached).
Recommendation:
That Council give by-law 2020-24 three readings and enact it.
c) Waterfront Project – Small Craft Basin construction RFP award

Four bids were received in response to the Request for Proposals (RFP) for the Small Craft basin
construction work. One company withdrew their bid, leaving the township with three proposals. EXP
Services Inc evaluated these proposals and have provided the township with a recommendation for
which bid to accept. Their report is attached for your review.
Recommendation:
That Council accept the recommendation of EXP Services Inc and authorize the Mayor and CAO/Clerk
to execute the necessary documents to enter into a contract with Build North Construction and
proceed with the preparation of the Articles of Agreement for the Kagawong Small Craft Basin
Improvements, Contract 20—03, for the value of $1,446,076.16 +HST
d) Old Mill Heritage Centre update
An update will be provided on planning for opening the Old Mill Heritage Centre museum this summer.
e) Resumption of Committees
Committee of Council meetings were cancelled in March when the province declared a state of
emergency due to COVID-19. As the province begins its staged approach to reopening, committee
members and members of the public have requested that the township’s committees resume their
meeting schedule.
The township remains under a state of emergency; non-essential work has not been prioritized due to our
sustained reduced staffing level and increased workload related to COVID-19. Resuming committee
meetings will require some logistical background work and training to increase our online meeting
capacity.
Recommendation:
That committee business remain suspended until the local state of emergency is lifted and/or staff
capacity is increased to a level capable of sustaining ongoing committee business.
9. Correspondence
a) Public Health Sudbury and Districts re: Kagawong Beach and COVID-19 guidelines for public beaches
Please review the attached correspondence from PHSD regarding the 2020 water sampling program and
guidelines for safe opening of public beaches with respect to COVID-19.
b) Manitoulin-Sudbury District Services Board re: COVID-19 interim funding and operation policies for
EarlyON and child care
Please review the attached correspondence from MSDSB.
Recommendation:
That Council pass a resolution of support for this matter.
c) Municipality of Huron Shores re: regional broadband
Please review the attached correspondence from the Municipality of Huron Shores.

Recommendation:
That the correspondence be noted and filed.
d) City of Brantford re: Essential Workers’ Day
Please review the attached correspondence from the City of Brantford.
Recommendation:
That Council pass a resolution of support for this matter.
e) Tay Township re: Great Lakes water levels
Please review the attached correspondence from Tay Township.
Recommendation:
That the correspondence be noted and filed.
f)

MP Carol Hughes re: Commercial Rent Assistance Program

Please review the attached from MP Carol Hughes in response to Council’s resolution regarding the
Commercial Rent Assistance Program.
g) MP Carol Hughes re: Universal Basic Income
Please review the attached from MP Carol Hughes in response to Council’s resolution regarding Universal
Basic Income.
10. Information
a) Manitoulin-Sudbury District Services Board 2019 consolidated financial statements and 2020 first
quarter report
The 2019 consolidated financial statements and first quarter 2020 report from the Manitoulin-Sudbury
District Services Board are attached for your information.

The Corporation of the
Township of Billings
Regular Meeting
Minutes

June 2, 2020

Electronic Meeting

Present (electronically): Mayor Ian Anderson, Councillors Sharon Alkenbrack, Bryan Barker,
Michael Hunt and Sharon Jackson
Staff: Megan Bonenfant, Deputy Clerk, Todd Gordon, Economic Development Officer; Kathy
McDonald, CAO/Clerk
Media: Tom Sasvari
Members of the General Public
Regrets: none
1. Opening of Meeting
2020-178 Hunt – Barker
BE IT RESOLVED that this regular meeting of council be opened with a quorum present
electronically at 4:03 p.m. with Mayor Anderson presiding.
Carried
2. Approval of Agenda
2020-179 Alkenbrack – Jackson
BE IT RESOLVED that the agenda for the June 2, 2020 regular meeting of council be
accepted as presented.
Carried
3. Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest
There were no disclosures of pecuniary interest.
4. Adoption of Minutes
2020-180 Barker – Hunt
BE IT RESOLVED that Council accepts the minutes of the May 19, 2020, regular meeting as
presented.
Carried
5. Delegations
None.
6. Committee Reports
None.

7. Old Business
a) Asset management funding application
2020-181 Barker – Jackson
BE IT RESOLVED that Council directs staff to apply for a grant opportunity from the
Federation of Canadian Municipalities’ Municipal Asset Management Program for Asset
Management Program Advancement in Billings; and,
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Municipality of Billings commits to conducting the
following activities in its proposed project submitted to the Federation of Canadian
Municipalities’ Municipal Asset Management Program to advance our asset
management program:
• O.Reg 588/17 Compliant Asset Management Plan
• CityWide Asset Manager and GIS Viewer Software License
• Implementation, Data Work and Training for Asset Management Software; and,
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Municipality of Billings commits $10,040.00 from its
budget toward the costs of this initiative.
Carried
b) By-law 2020-21 water rates
2020-182 Alkenbrack – Hunt
BE IT RESOLVED that by-law 2020-21, being a by-law to establish water rates for the
year 2020 and to provide sufficient revenue to meet the estimates required for the
operation of the water plant, be given first, second and third readings and enacted.
Carried
c) By-law 2020-22 tax rates (amended)
2020-183 Hunt – Barker
BE IT RESOLVED that by-law 2020-22, being a by-law to amend 2020-14, be given first,
second and third readings and enacted.
Carried
8. New Business
a) COVID-19 response update
The CEMC provided on update on reopening plans for the Kagawong River trails and
Bridal Veil Falls, the Ontario Fruit and Vegetable Program, and the Government of
Canada New Horizons for Seniors Program.
Councillor Alkenbrack requested that reopening of beaches be added to the next
Emergency Control Group meeting agenda.
b) COVID-19 Leadership Coordination Committee terms of reference
2020-184 Barker – Jackson
BE IT RESOLVED that Council endorses the COVID-19 Leadership Coordination
Committee terms of reference as presented.
Carried

c) Library Board resignation and new appointment
2020-185 Hunt – Barker
BE IT RESOLVED that Council accepts the resignation of Ann Parsons from the Billings
Public Library Board; and,
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Council appoints Barbara Erskine to the Billings Public
Library Board.
Carried
d) Server back-up
2020-186 Barker – Jackson
BE IT RESOLVED that Council authorizes the CAO/Clerk to purchase a server back-up
system as approved in the 2020 budget and coordinate its installation.
Carried
9. Correspondence
a) SH2 re: reopening Bridal Veil Falls
b) Old Mill Heritage Centre Curator re: Empress of Ireland funding
c) City of Kitchener re: Universal Basic Income
2020-187 Jackson – Alkenbrack
BE IT RESOLVED that Council for the Township of Billings joins the City of Kitchener in
urging the federal and provincial governments to pursue a partnership for the
establishment of a universal basic income; and,
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this resolution be sent to the Prime Minister,
the Premier, the Minister of Children, Community and Social Services, the Minister of
Municipal Affairs and Housing, the Association of Municipalities of Ontario, the
Federation of Canadian Municipalities, MP Carol Hughes, MPP Michael Mantha, and the
City of Kitchener.
Carried
10. Information
Council received the listed information.
11. Accounts for Payment
2020-188 Hunt – Barker
BE IT RESOLVED that Council authorizes the following accounts for payment:
General Accounts $64,334.56
and that cheques number 6256 to 6268 be authorized for signing as described in the
attached register.
Carried
12. Closed Session

None.
13. Confirming By-Law
2020-189 Alkenbrack – Barker
BE IT RESOLVED that By-law 2020-23, being a by-law to confirm the proceedings of Council
be given first, second, third reading and enacted.
Carried
14. Adjournment
2020-190 Barker – Hunt
BE IT RESOLVED that this regular meeting of council be adjourned at 4:52 p.m.
Carried

______________________________
Ian Anderson, Mayor
06/03/2020:mb

___________________________
Kathy McDonald, CAO/Clerk

The Corporation of the
Township of Billings
Special Meeting
Minutes

June 2, 2020

Electronic Meeting

Present (electronically): Mayor Ian Anderson, Councillors Sharon Alkenbrack, Bryan Barker,
Michael Hunt and Sharon Jackson
Staff: Megan Bonenfant, Deputy Clerk, Todd Gordon, Economic Development Officer; Kathy
McDonald, CAO/Clerk
Regrets: none
1. Opening of Meeting
2020-191 Hunt – Barker
BE IT RESOLVED that this special meeting of council be opened with a quorum present
electronically at 5:00 p.m. with Mayor Anderson presiding.
Carried
2. Approval of Agenda
2020-192 Alkenbrack – Jackson
BE IT RESOLVED that the agenda for the June 2, 2020 special meeting of council be accepted
as presented.
Carried
3. Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest
There were no disclosures of pecuniary interest.
4. Adoption of Minutes
None.
5. Delegations
None.
6. Committee Reports
None.
7. Old Business
None.
8. New Business
None.

9. Correspondence
None.
10. Information
None.
11. Accounts for Payment
None.
12. Closed Session
2020-193 Barker – Hunt
BE IT RESOLVED that in accordance with Section 239(2)(k) of the Municipal Act, 2001 S.O.
Chapter 25, this Council proceed to a Closed Session at 5:02 p.m. in order to discuss an item
involving negotiations regarding a capital project.
Resolution 2020-194 was passed in camera to provide direction to the CAO/Clerk.
2020-195 Alkenbrack – Hunt
BE IT RESOLVED that Council move out of Closed Session at 5:27 p.m. and resume their
special, open meeting.
13. Confirming By-Law
None.
14. Adjournment
2020-196 Barker – Hunt
BE IT RESOLVED that this special meeting of council be adjourned at 5:28 p.m.
Carried

______________________________
Ian Anderson, Mayor
06/03/2020:mb

___________________________
Kathy McDonald, CAO/Clerk

Megan Bonenfant
To:
Subject:

Kathy McDonald
RE: EDC event

-----Original Message----From: sandihurcomb@gmail.com <sandihurcomb@gmail.com>
Sent: Friday, June 05, 2020 2:20 PM
To: Kathy McDonald <clerktreasurer@billingstwp.ca>
Cc:
Subject: EDC event
Dear Mayor and Council,
These are difficult times; this is not news to any of us. More then ever we need to work together to endeavour to come
out of this global mess, hopefully intact. I am very (reasonably so) concerned that won’t be the case for our businesses,
we can only hope for the best. As much as working together is paramount, I am struggling to see how council, EDC and
the businesses are working towards the same goal. There has been no communication from the EDC or council as a
whole with our tiny business community, I find this frustrating and counter productive. I hope by writing this letter you
can try to understand our precarious position.
That being said, we recently learned that councillor Alkenbrack, also a member of the EDC has planned an event with a
singular business owner in Kagawong to give away chocolate to township children. The gesture is sweet but the optics
of this event are disappointing and it overlooks how this event effects the sense of community and other businesses.
We will be re-opening Boo-Bah-Lou this coming weekend in an attempt to salvage what we can of our spring season,
directing competing with this event. By Council endorsing this give away it indicates that you are willing to team up
with select businesses but not all. How is the EDC serving our community by doing this? I am willing to consider this is
an oversight but it could be perceived as something very different. We ask that council and the EDC engage your
business community directly, enabling a productive, proactive and functional Economic Development Committee that
serves us all.
I respectfully request to have this letter put on the agenda of the next council meeting and be granted a delegation to
speak at the next meeting. Thank you for for hearing us out.
Sandi and David Hurcomb

1

COVID-19 Public Safety Protocols
Public Safety Protocols for Ontario’s Farmers’ Markets
Updated June 5, 2020
Farmers’ markets, as businesses that primarily sell food, are considered essential workplaces under Ontario’s Emergency Order. As such, two models of farmers’ market may operate, with the appropriate approvals,
during this time.
The protocols that follow for each model have been developed in consultation with public health officials and
must be reviewed and adapted in consultation with the local

public health unit to meet each market’s

specific operational requirements.
This is not business as usual for markets as social interaction must be limited to maintain physical distancing to ensure the health and safety of vendors and customers.

OPTION 1: Protocols for multi-vendor, multi-stand market
Market managers/organizers must ensure:
Their landlord/property owner approves.
2. They contact their local public health unit (PHU) and present a plan (including a
1.

diagram showing a proposed market layout and a complete list of vendors and their products) and
review this protocol adapting the plan, as required by the PHU, based on their operation/location.
3.

The majority of vendors must be selling food, other consumer products and art and craft
may be sold.

4.

Stands are spaced out and customer circulation is monitored or controlled (perhaps
one-way movement) to maintain social distancing and shoppers time at the market.

The FMO COVID-19 Fact/Info Sheet is posted and seen by all vendors and shoppers.
6. The names of all vendors selling are recorded for each market day and the records are
5.

maintained.
7.

Washroom(s) and/or hand sanitizer station(s) is/are available for all shoppers/vendors
to wash their hands as required.

8.

Washroom(s)/hand washing station(s) are properly stocked and frequently cleaned
and disinfected.

There is no sampling of food.
10. There is no use of reusable or customer supplied containers.
11. There are no communal tables or seating.
9.

Food Vendors should respect the following measures to protect themselves and shoppers:
1.

Wash hands regularly and thoroughly (minimum 20 seconds) with soap and water or
use an alcohol-based hand sanitizer.

2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.

Clean and sanitize frequently-touched market stand surfaces
regularly (with household cleaners or diluted bleach solution of 1-part bleach to 9 parts water).
Maintain social distancing– keep 2 metres (6 feet) away from others.
Avoid touching eyes, nose and mouth.
Cover mouth and nose with bent elbow or tissue if coughing or sneezing.
Not attend the Market if not well.
Prepackage and box products at a fixed price to reduce contact.

Best Practices for Operating a Multi-vendor, Multi-stand Market
Farmers’ Markets Ontario would like to acknowledge and thank the Peterborough Regional Farmers’ Network (PRFN) for developing and agreeing to share their Market Operations Guideline document. The PRFN
worked with Peterborough Public Health in the development of the specific public health protocols that enabled their market to open during the Covid-19 Pandemic.
We have revised the PRFN document to be more generic and easier for markets to edit as required (the document is a Word file). We encourage markets to use these guidelines as you create your plan in co-ordination
with your local public health unit.
Operations Document Download

OPTION 2: Protocols for E-Commerce/E-Market protocols
If individual markets plan to operate an e-commerce

model with a drive/walk-through pickup of

pre-ordered and prepaid products, market managers/organizers must ensure:
Their landlord/property owner approves.
2. The majority of vendors must be selling food; other consumer products and art and craft
1.

may be offered for on-line sale.
3.

They contact their local public health unit to confirm the operating procedures for
their specific operation to maintain social distancing and proper handwashing and
sanitizing protocols, including:
◦ A written plan showing traffic circulation.
◦ A delivery plan based on the number of orders and drive-up customers – if there are a lot,
consider staggering times for pickup based on last names (A-E 9-9:30am, F-J 9:30 -10am
etc.) and
◾ those who drive must stay in their vehicle with orders placed in their vehicles
by vendors/volunteers.
◾ those who walk must be kept 2 metres (6’) apart with orders placed on a table
for them to pick-up to maintain social distancing.
◾ vendors/volunteers must maintain social distancing.
◦ Hand washing/alcohol-based hand sanitizing facilities are available for
vendors/volunteers.

◦ Vendors/volunteers are screened for COVID-19, confirming they:
◾ Have no symptoms (fever, cough, runny nose, sore throat or shortness of
breath).
◾ Have not travelled outside of Canada in the past 14 days.
◾ Have not been in contact with a confirmed or probable case of COVID-19.
◦ Surfaces where orders are placed or organized are cleaned and disinfected regularly
(with household cleaners or diluted bleach solution of 1-part bleach to 9 parts water).
◦ Food products are packaged and orders must be prepackaged in new, single use boxes or
bags and labelled with customer names or order numbers.
◦ Refrigerated and frozen products must be maintained at proper temperatures.
We encourage all members to share your thoughts on the FMO Market Manager Facebook Group page.

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP of BILLINGS
BY-LAW 2020-24
BEING A BY-LAW TO PROVIDE FOR THE CONTROL OF DOGS
WHEREAS Section 103 of the Municipal Act S.O.2001 as amended provides that by-laws may be passed
by the Councils of local municipalities for licensing, keeping and prohibiting or regulating the running at
large of dogs within the Municipality;
AND WHEREAS section 429 (1) of the Municipal Act states a municipality may establish a system of fines
for offences under a by-law of the municipality passed under this Act;
AND WHEREAS The Township of Billings recognizes the rights of property owners to enjoy the
possession of dogs;
AND WHEREAS The Township of Billings protects its residents and their properties from nuisance and
vicious dogs;
AND WHEREAS The Township of Billings deems it desirable to control dogs within the boundaries of the
Township.
NOW THEREFORE THE COUNCIL OF THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP of BILLINGS ENACTS AS
FOLLOWS:
1.0

DEFINITIONS

In this By-Law the following definitions shall apply:
1.1
1.2

1.3

1.4
1.5
1.6
1.7
1.8
1.9
1.10

1.11
1.12
1.13
1.14
1.15

1.16
1.17

“Animal Control Officer” means the person appointed by the Council for the purpose of this bylaw;
“Dog” means a domestic canine animal, male or female, spayed or neutered which is four
months of age or older but does not include a guide dog within the meaning of the Blind Persons
Act, as amended, or a Police Work Dog.
“DOG FOSTERING” means keeping a dog in a residence for up to 90 days or a length of time
agreed upon with the By-Law Enforcement Officer. until the dog is taken to an animal shelter or
adopted into a new home;
“EMOTIONAL SUPPORT ANIMAL means an animal that provides comfort or security, but does
not have any specific task training;
“HARBOUR” means having care, custody or control of a dog;
“LEASH” means a chain, rope, line, cord or other device not exceeding 2 metres (6 feet 6inches)
in length which is used to secure or restrain a dog;
“TOWNSHIP” means the Corporation of the Township of Billings.
“MUNICIPAL BY-LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICER” means a person who is appointed by the Council
of the Township of Billings for the purpose of enforcing the municipality’s by-laws.
“NUISANCE DOG” means a dog that causes a disturbance with persistent barking, calling or any
other sound.
“OWNER” means any person who owns, possesses, keeps or harbours a dog for any period of
time, and where the owner of the dog is a minor, the person responsible for custody of the
minor;
“PIT BULL” means as defined in the Dog Owners Liability Act R.S.O. Chapter D.16 section 1.1;
“POUND” means the premises or facility that is used for the detention, maintenance or disposal
of dogs that have been impounded in accordance m
“POUND KEEPER” means a person or organization responsible for maintaining the pound on
behalf of the Township for the purpose of enforcing or carrying out the provisions of this by-law.
“RESCUE DOG” means a dog that is waiting to be placed into a new home after being abused,
neglected or abandoned by the previous owner;
“RUNNING AT LARGE” means that a dog be deemed at large if found on premises other than
that of the owner of the dog or not under the care and control of a person who is physically
capable of restraining the dog.
“SERVICE DOG” means any dog trained by a recognized school or organization to perform tasks
for the benefit of an individual;
“VICIOUS DOG’ means a dog that is known to have made an unprovoked attack or bite which
caused physical injury to a person or another domestic animal

2.0

KEEPING OF DOGS

2.1

2.7

Every person who owns a Dog in the Township shall provide such Dog or cause it to be provided
with such food, potable water, exercise and attention as may be required to keep it in good
health.
If a Dog is customarily kept outdoors, the person who owns such a Dog shall at all times provide
for its use; a structurally sound, weather proof enclosure with off ground flooring.
No person in the Township shall keep a Dog tethered on a chain, rope or similar restraining
device of less than 2.4 metres in length.
Every Owner of a Dog shall forthwith remove any excrement left by a dog on any land in the
Township.
Every Owner of a Dog must remove excrement from their property in a timely manner so as not
to disturb the enjoyment, comfort or convenience of persons or property owners in the vicinity
of their premises or property.
The Owner of a Dog shall be deemed responsible for damages to public or private property
known to be caused by their dog and pay compensation for such damages.
No Dog Owner shall possess any more than 3 Dogs at one time in a single dwelling unit.

3.0

VICIOUS DOGS

3.1

The Township shall investigate and keep on file, records of reported citizen or police complaints
of unprovoked Dog attacks.
The Owner of a VICIOUS DOG shall, at all times , when not in the owners dwelling but otherwise
within the boundaries of the Owner’s land, be secured in one of the following manners so as to
prevent the Dog from escaping and to prevent the Dog from causing injury to any person or
other domestic animal entering onto the Owner’s lands:
a) The Dog shall be located wholly within a fenced yard and any gate in such fenced
yard shall be locked at all times when the Dog is in the fenced yard, or:
b) The Dog shall be located within an enclosed run designed in such a fashion and
made of such material which will prevent the Dog from digging its way out or
otherwise escaping from the enclosed run.
c) The Dog shall be muzzled so as to prevent it from biting a person or other domestic
animal and be securely leashed on a leash or chain, by the Owner or designate who
is of age and stature to restrain the Dog.
The Owner of a VICIOUS DOG shall at all times when the Dog is outside the boundaries of the
Owner’s land, keep the Dog muzzled so as to prevent the Dog from biting a person or other
domestic animal, and be securely leashed to the Owner or a designate who is of age and stature
to restrain the Dog, unless it is on the lands of a person who has consented to it being on his
lands, in which case the provisions of paragraph 2 of this section apply.

2.2
2.3
2.4
2.5

2.6

3.2

3.3

4.0

NUISANCE DOGS

4.1

The persistent barking, calling or any sound (over 5 minutes and/or multiple times) made by a
Dog which disturbs the peace, quiet, comfort or repose of an individual at any time of the day
shall not be permitted. Owners of nuisance Dogs will be deemed responsible for creating the
disturbance.
Dog Owners are prohibited from allowing their Dogs to create a disturbance by allowing
persistent barking or making of noises.

4.2

5.0

FOSTER DOGS/RESCUE DOGS

5.1

Foster/Rescue Dogs in the care of a person affiliated with a recognized Dog Fostering/Rescuing
organization and who is registered with the Township will be permitted to exceed the limit of
Dogs in a single dwelling identified in Section 2.7 for 90 days or a length of time agreed to with
the Municipal By-Law Enforcement Officer, and up to a maximum of 5 Dogs totalled.
Persons who are affiliated with a recognized Dog Fostering/Rescuing organization shall register
themselves with the Township office.

5.2

6.0

SERVICE DOGS/EMOTIONAL SUPPORT DOGS

6.1

The Township will recognize and support the use of Service and Police Work Dogs in Township
facilities.
The Township will recognize Emotional Support Dogs but will not support their use in Township
facilities, unless a physician’s note is provided.

6.2

7.0

DOGS RUNNING AT LARGE

7.1

No person in control of a Dog or a Dog Owner shall allow their Dog(s) to RUN AT LARGE in the
Township.
No person in control of a Dog or a Dog Owner shall permit their dog to trespass on private
property whether the on a Leash or not, unless permission for said trespass is first obtained
from the property owner.
Every Owner shall ensure that their Dog is on a Leash when on any Township owned property or
Township owned facility. (See Schedule “B”)

7.2

7.3
8. 0

Dog Impoundment

8.1 The Township shall have an agreement with an Animal Control Officer who shall provide Dog
pound/pound keeper services for the Township.
8.2 Where a Dog is seized and impounded under authority of this By-Law, the Owner , if known, and
whether the Dog is claimed from the pound or not shall be liable for the pound and maintenance fees
prescribed and shall be liable to the pound keeper and the Municipal Law Enforcement Officer which
fees may be recoverable under the Provincial Offences Act, R.S.O. 1990, as amended.
8.3 Dogs shall be accepted by the Animal Control Officer where they deem to do so as a danger to
themselves, other persons, or other domestic animals in which case the Dog may be humanely
destroyed without delay.
9.0

Enforcement and Penalties

9.1 This By-Law shall be enforced by the Municipal By-Law Enforcement Officer and/or an Animal
Control Officer.
9.2 No person shall hinder or obstruct or attempt to hinder or obstruct an officer who is exercising a
power or performing a duty under this bylaw.
9.3 Every person who contravenes a provision of this By-Law is guilty of an offence and upon conviction
is liable to a fine as provide for in the Provincial Offences Act. R.S.O. 1990, c.P.33 as amended.
9.4 If any part, section subsection, clause or paragraph of this By-Law, is for any reason held invalid, such
portions shall be deemed separate, distinct and independent and such holding shall not affect the
validity of the By-Law as a whole or any part thereof, other than the provision, so declared to be invalid.
10.0

Repeal

10.1 This By-Law repeals Township of Billings bylaw 2013-27.
10.2 This bylaw shall be known as the Dog Control Bylaw.
10.3 This By-Law will come into affect upon the date the bylaw is passed by Council.

READ A FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD TIME AND PASSED THIS THE ____ DAY OF
________________________ 2020

………………………………….
MAYOR

………………………………….
CLERK

The Corporation of the Township of Billings
By-Law 2020-____
“SCHEDULE A”
P.O. A. Part 1
Set Fine Rates
(Page 1 of 1)

Item

Short form wording

1
2
3
4

Failure to take proper care of dog
Failure to provide proper enclosure.
Use inappropriate tether.
Failure to remove excrement from Town
property.
Not removing excrement in a timely
manner.
Possessing more than 3 dogs
Failure to properly fence a Vicious Dog
Failure to muzzle and properly secure a
Vicious Dog on a leash.
Nuisance Dog creating a disturbance.
Allowing a dog to Run At Large.
Allowing dog to trespass on private
property.
Dog not on a leash on Town property.
Operating a Kennel
Hinder or Obstruct
Attempt to hinder or Obstruct

5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15

Provision Creating or Defining
Offence
Section 2.1
Section 2.2
Section 2.3
Section 2.4

Set Fine
$500.00
$100.00
$50.00
$100.00

Section 2.5

$100.00

Section 2.7
Section 3.2 (a) (b)
Section 3.3

$50.00
$250.00
$250.00

Section 4.2
Section 7.1
Section 7.2

$100.00
$100.00
$100.00

Section 7.3
Section 8.1
Section 9.2
Section 9.2

$50.00
$500.00
$500.00
$500.00

Note: The penalty provision for the offences indicated above is section 9.3 of this By-Law 2019-34, a
certified copy of which has been filed.
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1 Purpose
This report will outline the scoring process executed by EXP’s proposal review team for RFP 20-03 for
the Township of Billings
The Township of Billings submitted RFP 20-03 on April 27th, 2020 and had a deadline for Proposal
Submissions May 28th, 2020 at 2:00pm.

2 Scoring Criteria
The submitting procedure for proponents is the submission of two (2) envelopes. Envelope 1 – Technical
Proposal and Envelope 2 – Proposal Form.
The scoring criteria for the purpose of RFP 20-03 will first have a technical evaluation. The technical
evaluation will be scored out of 30 following the criteria shown below in Table 1.
Table 1 : Technical Scoring Criteria
Technical Proposal Evaluation
Company Experience and Project
Management
Project Team and Sub-trades
Quality Management
Environmental Management
Safety Management
Project Schedule
Technical Plan
Financial Control
Total Technical:

Point Allocation
7
2
3
3
2
5
5
3
30

Once it has been determined that each proponent has received a technical score of 21 or higher, then and
only then will each proponent’s Proposal Form be opened and evaluated to calculate their total score.
The Proposal Form scoring will be scored out of 70 and follow equation 1 below.
Equation (1)
2 Times Cost of Lowest Proposal − Cost of Proposal being Evaluated
x Full Weight of Cost Criteria
Cost of Lowest Proposal

A total score out of 100 is then summed together from the Technical score and Proposal Form score.

1

Township of Billings
Small Craft Basin Improvements – Revision 1
Report – June 11th, 2020

3 Proposal Scoring
Four (4) Proposals were submitted for RFP 20-03, Build North Construction, Cecchetto and Sons LTD,
Cecchetto Infrastructure LTD and Denis Gratton Construction LTD. All four (4) proposals where
submitted on time and will all receive a full evaluation
NOTE: Although four (4) proposals were submitted, it was the decision of Cecchetto Infrastructure and
Maintenance Ltd to withdraw their proposal price and will not receive an evaluation. A formal letter from
Cecchetto Infrastructure and Maintenance Ltd has been attached as Appendix A of this report.

3.1 Technical Score
The technical score for each proponent was carefully scored on every aspect of their proposal. The
scoring for each section is shown below in Table 2.

Table 2 : Technical Proposal Evaluation
Technical Proposal Evaluation
Denis Gratton
Construction

Build North
Construction

Cecchetto
Infrastructure

Company Experience
(7)

6.5

6

6.75

Project Team (2)

2

2

2

Quality Management
(3)

2.5

1

1.5

Environmental
Management (3)

3

0

1

Safety Management (2)

2

2

1

Project Schedule (5)

4

5

3.75

Tech Plan (5)

4.5

4

4.5

Financial Control (3)

2.5

1

0.5

Total

27

21

N/A

Cecchetto and
Sons

21
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From Table 2 above, each proponent but one (1) has successfully reached the 21 minimum score to be
eligible for financial scoring.

3.2 Financial Score
From each proponent’s Envelope 2 - Proposal Form submission, the following total prices were
submitted to RFP 20-03.
Denis Gratton Construction LTD - $ 1,779,542.10
Build North Construction - $ 1,493,200.41***
Cecchetto Infrastructure LTD – $ 1,364,775.24*
Cecchetto and Sons LTD - $ 1,728,801.90**
*Withdrew
**NOTE – Upon reviewing the Schedule of Prices for each Proposal Form it was noted that the total was
not added up correctly for selected items shown in Table 3 below and the total above reflect the correct
total based on the prices listed in Schedule of Prices.
***NOTE – Upon reviewing the Schedule of Prices for each Proposal Form it was noted that the total
was not added up correctly for selected items shown in Table 4 below and the total above reflect the
correct total based on the prices listed in Schedule of Prices.
Table 3 : List of Items Corrected

Item 6 (Part B)
Total

Cecchetto and Sons LTD
Original Value
Corrected Value
$ 6,243.00
$ 4,162.00
$ 1,730,995.35
$ 1,728,801.90

Table 4 : List of Items Corrected

Item 7 (Part B)
Item 8 (Part B)
Item 13 (Part B)
Item 15 (Part B)
Item 17 (Part C)
Item 18 (Part C)
Item 20 (Part C)
Item 29 (Part C)
Item 30 (Part C)
Total

Build North Construction
Original Value
Corrected Value
$ 103,542.50
$ 106,640.00
$ 22,097.92
$ 22,097.96
$ 30,764.00
$ 30,764.34
$ 32,833.08
$ 32,832.80
$ 6,061.72
$ 6,055.71
$ 18,355.60
$ 18,355.38
$ 33,728.52
$ 33,728.24
$ 38,181.32
$ 38,180.35
$ 14,439.98
$ 14,439.84
$ 1,489,955.89
$ 1,493,200.41
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Each proponent successfully submitted Schedule of Prices, Agreement to Bond and 10% Proposal
Deposit.
The financial score calculation will follow equation 1 above and is shown in Table 5 below. It should be
noted that since Cecchetto Infrastructure LTD withdrew their Proposal that their price was not subjected
to scoring and from Equation 1, therefore Build North Construction will be used as the lowest price.
Table 5 : Financial Score
Financial Score
Denis Gratton Construction LTD

56.57

Build North Construction

70

Cecchetto Infrastructure LTD

N/A

Cecchetto and Sons LTD

58.95

3.3 Total Score
A total score is calculated from the summation of the technical score and financial score shown below in
Table 6.
Table 6 : Total Score
Total Score
Denis Gratton Construction LTD

83.57

Build North Construction

91

Cecchetto Infrastructure LTD

N/A

Cecchetto and Sons LTD

79.95

4 Price Adjustments
EXP requested a revised costs sheet from Build North Construction on June 4th, 2020 for potential costs
savings. The costs savings will come from revising Item Numbers 9, 14,15 and 30. The modifications
during construction can be noted in Appendix B of this report. The total costs savings to the contract price
before contingency is $ 41,325.00 bringing the total contract price to $ 1,446,076.16
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5 Recommendation
From Table 6 above, it is shown that Build North Construction received the highest total score out of the
four (4) Proposals submitted.
EXP recommends the Township of Billings enter into contract with Build North Construction and
proceed with the preparation of the Articles of Agreement for the Kagawong Small Craft Basin
Improvements, Contract 20-03 for the value of $ 1,446,076.16 after cost savings (Excl. HST).
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APPENDIX A –
Cecchetto Infrastructure and Maintenance Ltd Formal
Withdrawal Letter
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APPENDIX B –
Revised Costs as per Request June 4th, 2020 from Build
North Construction

Kagawong – Small Craft Basin Improvements
Contract Number: 20-03
Date:

June 9, 2020

RE: Revised Costs as per Request June 4, 2020 (Mark Langille)

The following adjustments to BNC submitted price are as per the alternatives presented on Page 2:
Submitted

Adjustment

Revised

Item 9

$ 90,624.40

$29,650.00

$ 60,974.40

Item 14

$ 15,146.14

$ 2,530.00

$ 12,616.14

Item 15

$ 32,833.08

$ 5,925.00

$ 26,908.08

Item 30

$ 14,439.98

$ 3,220.00

$ 11,219.98

Pricing with respect to the alternatives presented would provide a $41,325 savings to the project.

Regards,

Keith Broomhead
Project Manager - BNC
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Alternatives presented via email June 4, 2020:
Item No. 14 - Marina Pedestals
•
•

Please provide pricing for Pedestals from – ACE Manufacturing (Quantity 4)
ACE Manufacturing, Bittern Lake, AB (1-866-352-7145)

Item No. 15 - Marina Pedestal Supply Piping – 50mm dia. PEX
•

Please provide pricing for 50mm dia. HDPE DR17 (Quantity 110m)

Item No. 30 - Guild Rail
•
•
•

Please provide pricing for reducing quantity from (67m to 31m)
We are removing the guild rail around the hydro pole in the parking lot and would like
to create a barrier by placing large stone (local limestone) in its place.
Please provide cost for supply and install large stones

Item No. 9 – Concrete Approach Structures
•
•

We are currently revising Concrete Approach Structures drawing to: four
sonotubes and slab on grade/ structure.
Drawing will be submitted to Build North Friday June 5th for pricing.
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June 9, 2020
VIA EMAIL – kmcdonald@billingstwp.ca

Kathy McDonald
Corporation of the Township of Billings
15 Old Mill Road
P.O. Box 34
Kagawong, ON P0P 1J0
Dear K. McDonald:
Re: Kagawong Village Beach
This letter is to advise that Public Health Sudbury & Districts will once again be
conducting inspections and water quality assessments of all designated public
beaches in accordance with the Ontario Public Health Standards: Recreational
Water Protocol, 2019.
Part of every recreational water program is the pre-seasonal assessment of
each existing public beach within our inspection inventory. The purpose is to
determine whether the beach remains suitable for recreational use and
includes sampling the water for E. coli and conducting safety checks for
hazards that would render the beach unsafe. Pre-seasonal assessments will
occur between June 15 and June 26, 2020.
Between June 29 and August 28, 2020, Public Health will routinely inspect and
sample public beaches based on the following frequency:
• Monthly for beaches that have a satisfactory water sampling history
• Weekly for beaches that were posted with a swimming advisory notice
in the 2019 bathing beach season
Your designated public beach will be sampled as per the following frequency:
•

Kagawong Village Beach = weekly

Public Health will continue to address concerns related to public complaints
and blue-green algal sightings. Safety concerns identified through routine or
complaint-based inspections will be sent to you for immediate follow-up to
ensure the public’s safety.
A media release announcing the start of the seasonal public beach water
testing program is expected to be issued on June 12, 2020.

Corporation of the Township of Billings
June 9, 2020
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It is essential that your facility continue to adhere to the most up-to-date provincial emergency
orders and public health recommendations as outlined in the attached COVID-19 Public Health
Guidance for Public Beaches document.
If you have any questions or comments, please contact me directly at roccac@phsd.ca or at
705.522.9200 ext. 279, (toll-free 1.866.522.9200).
Sincerely,

Cynthia Peacock-Rocca
Manager, Health Protection
CPR:ja
Enclosure

COVID-19 guidelines
for public beaches
This guidance document for municipalities provides
recommendations to help stop the spread of COVID-19,
while using public beaches.

◽ Social media posts and website content that can be
shared by a variety of users and partner agencies to
get the information out to potential beach visitors.

Public beaches include any public bathing area owned/
operated by a municipality to which the general public
has access, and where there is reason to believe that
there is recreational use of the water (e.g. beach
signage, sectioned off swimming area, water safety/
rescue equipment, lifeguard chairs, etc.), which may
result in waterborne illness or injury.

◽ Public service announcements that local
newspapers can publish.

It is important for municipalities to adhere to
provincial emergency orders and public health
recommendations on gathering requirements or
recommendations to determine if activities and
amenities such as swim lessons, group sports, or play
equipment can be held or utilized by beach goers.

COVID-19 transmission from
recreational waters
Current research suggests the risk of transmission from
recreational waters is very low. However, COVID-19
is spread through respiratory droplets when in close
contact with others. It is common to see people
swimming and playing in the water in close proximity
of one another. Therefore, the risk of exposure to
COVID-19 is greater if physical distancing is not
maintained.

Communicate public health recommendations
before visitors come to the beach
• Encourage visitors to use beaches close to their own
communities, when possible.
• Encourage visitors displaying symptoms (i.e. fever,
cough, difficulty breathing, muscle aches, fatigue,
headache, sore throat, runny nose) or who have come
into contact with someone who has COVID-19
symptoms, to not visit the beach.
• Provide visitor education based on public health
recommendations and local municipal restrictions.
Communicate using a variety of approaches including:

◽ Posting signage on roads leading to the beach area.
◽ Posting screening signs at all entrances and ensure
everyone self-screens before coming to the beach.
◽ Posting Cover Your Cough posters in visible
locations as visitors arrive at the beach.

Maintain physical distance
Municipalities should take measures to ensure that
beach visitors who are not from the same household
maintain a physical distance of at least 2 metres
(6 feet) or more from other people at all times. By
maintaining physical distance, people are less likely
to be exposed to COVID-19. While at the beach, ensure
that physical distancing is maintained while in the
water, and while having fun on the shore.
Develop a beach plan to maintain physical distancing
• Public beach managers must have a plan and process
for determining adequate spacing and square footage
at the waterfront and beach.
• This plan should include a process for enforcement
and crowd control. This can include:
◽ Dedicating a beach entrance and exit.
◽ Posting signage to indicate how people can
maintain a safe distance while at the beach.
◽ Use ground markings and barriers to manage
traffic flow.
◽ Consider making paths one way.
◽ Consider adding grids or circles on the beach to
indicate safe physical distancing. This will help individuals and families judge distance more effectively.
◽ Review parking to determine if physical distancing
can be maintained in parking lots. If not, consider
enhancing street parking or making some streets for
pedestrian use only.
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COVID-19 guidelines for public beaches continued
◽ Limit the number of visitors to the beach to ensure
physical distancing is maintained. This may include
tracking the numbers on the beach and closing
entrances to other visitors until people leave the
beach before letting others in.
◽ Prohibit organized activities such as beach
volleyball, etc., unless limited to one household
at a time without shared equipment.

Promote hand hygiene
• Encourage all visitors to wash or sanitize their hands
as they arrive at the beach.
• Encourage visitors to bring alcohol-based hand
sanitizer (at least 60% alcohol-based) supplies to
sanitize their hands.
• Post handwashing and hand sanitizing posters in high
traffic areas. Encourage visitors to the beach to bring
their own hand sanitizer and disinfectant wipes to be
used during their beach visit.
Support proper hand hygiene
• Post signage on handwashing and hand sanitizing
at sinks.
• Ensure that soap and paper towels are always
available and are refilled frequently.
• Paper towels are preferred in public washrooms
during COVID-19. Though no studies have pointed to
COVID-19 being transmitted through electric air
dryers, some studies show that air dryers can
spread bacteria.
• Hands-free sinks and paper towel dispensers are
preferred to avoid the use of handles which reduces
high touch surfaces in washrooms. If hands-free
appliances cannot be installed, more frequent
cleaning and disinfection of frequently touched
surfaces is required.
• Alcohol-based hand sanitizer (at least 60%
alcohol-based) should be made available where
possible at the entrance/exit of the washroom.
Promote wearing of non-medical masks
• Encourage all visitors to bring and wear their own
non-medical mask. Public health agencies recommend
wearing a non-medical mask (for example, a homemade cloth mask or face covering) as an added step to

protect others when physical distancing is challenging or not possible – even if you have no symptoms of
COVID-19 (novel coronavirus).
• For more information refer to Public Health Ontario’s
factsheet COVID-19: Non-medical Masks and Face
Coverings.

Public washrooms
Public washrooms are important facilities as beaches
open and depending on where they are located, they
can be busy. Therefore, safety and cleaning precautions
are needed given the risks of COVID-19. Please see
Cleaning and Disinfection for Public Settings (Public
Health Ontario).
Support physical distancing
• Post physical distancing signage outside and inside
the washroom in case of lineups.
• Floor markers to designate 2 metres (6 feet) spacing
may be advisable in busier washrooms.
• Post maximum occupancy signs to further enhance
physical distancing.
• Some urinals and sink basins may need to be
decommissioned (taped off) if 2 metres (6 feet)
spacing cannot be maintained in the current set up.
• If premise provides, allow for one entrance and exit
of the public washroom. If the premise only has one
entrance/exit, signage must be posted to remind
people about physical distancing.
Other precautions
• Place signage in each stall instructing users to flush
the toilet with the lid down, if applicable.
• Ventilation in the facility should be maximized.
Cleaning and disinfecting the facility
• Frequent cleaning (including garbage) and
disinfection should take place, especially in commonly
touched areas/surfaces.
• The frequency of the cleaning and disinfection is
dependent on the use of the facility.
• Baby change tables may be used and will require
frequent cleaning and disinfection.
• Ensure a daily log is noted on when the washrooms
were cleaned and by whom.
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COVID-19 guidelines for public beaches continued
Portable toilets
• Post signage on handwashing and hand sanitizing
at sinks.
• Post physical distancing signage outside the portable
toilet in case of lineups.
• Increase cleaning protocols and service intervals.
• To ensure physical distancing, the number of portable
toilets may need to be increased.
• Operators should ensure hand sanitizer is available
and frequently refilled.

Waste disposal
• Provide sufficient numbers of garbage receptacles for
customers to dispose of used sanitizing wipes, masks,
gloves, and other waste properly.
• Encourage visitors to take garbage and recyclables
home with them.

Pet safety
• If dogs are allowed on the beach, they should be on
leash and at least 2 metres (6 feet) away from other
people and animals.

Recreational and safety equipment
• It is a decision for beach managers whether or not
they hire out equipment.
• If sharing safety equipment, kickboards, pull buoys,
or personal flotation devices (PFD), disinfect between
each use.

Occupational health and safety
• Employers must have written measures and
procedures for staff safety, including for infection
prevention and control. Detailed guidelines for
COVID-19 are available on the Ministry of Health’s
COVID-19 and Province of Ontario websites.

• If a staff member working at the beach is diagnosed
with COVID-19, the staff member must remain off
work for 14 days following symptom onset and must
receive clearance from the local public health unit
before returning to work.
• If a staff member is a close contact of an individual
diagnosed with COVID-19, the staff member must
remain off work for 14 days from last exposure.
• The staff member should consult with the local public
health unit to determine when they can return to work.
Staff members should also report to their Employee
Health/Occupational Health and Safety Department
prior to returning to work.
• Refer to the Lifesaving Society Guidance Document
Guide to Reopening Pools and Waterfront for best
practices for minimizing the risk of COVID-19
transmission.

References
Lifesaving Society. (June 2020). Guide to Reopening Pools and
Waterfronts. Retrieved from: https://www.lifesavingsociety.
com/media/324917/98guide_reopening%20pools_waterfronts_
finalr%20-%20june%202020.pdf
Public Services Health & Safety Association. (2020). Precautions
When Working As A Parks Recreation Worker. Retrieved from:
https://www.pshsa.ca/resources/covid-19-precautions-whenworking-as-a-parks-recreation-worke
Public Health Ontario. (2020). How to Care for Pets and Other
Animals. Retrieved from: https://www.publichealthontario.ca/-/
media/documents/ncov/factsheet/factsheet-covid-19-domesticanimals.pdf?la=en
Public Health Ontario. (2020). Cleaning and Disinfection for Public
Settings. Retrieved from: https://www.publichealthontario.ca/-/
media/documents/ncov/factsheet-covid-19-environmental-cleaning.
pdf?la=en
Public Health Ontario. (2020). Non-medical Masks and Face
Coverings. Retrieved from:https://www.publichealthontario.ca/-/
media/documents/ncov/factsheet/2020/05/factsheet-covid-19-nonmedical-masks.pdf?la=en
This document has been adapted from Simcoe Muskoka District
Health Unit, 2020.

For more information contact Public Health Sudbury & Districts at 705.522.9200,
Monday to Friday from 8:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m.
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June 1, 2020

Hon. Stephen Lecce, Minister
Ministry of Education
5th Floor, 438 University Avenue
Toronto ON
M7A 2A5
SENT VIA E-MAIL: minister.edu@ontario.ca
Dear Minister:
RE: COVID-19 Interim Funding and Operating Policies for EarlyON and Child Care
At it’s regular meeting held Thursday May 28, 2020, the Manitoulin-Sudbury District
Services Board passed Resolution #20-47 which fully endorses the NOSDA letter sent to
your attention on May 26, 2020.
On March 21, 2020 District Social Service Administration Boards and Consolidated
Municipal Service Managers received a memo indicating how Provincial monies were to
be allocated.
In the letter, it stated that your Ministry would:

“The ministry will continue to fund CMSMs and DSSABs at the funding levels
confirmed in the October 25, 2019 allocations memo and is directing CMSMs
and DSSABs to continue to flow funding to child care centres and agencies.”
“The ministry does not intend to recover funding for early years and child care
services as a result of measures implemented as part of COVID-19
preparedness, including complying with closure orders and will work with you
on how this funding is considered in our child care recovery plan” and that
“The ministry continues to depend on the authority and discretion that service
system managers hold in order to make decisions that best support the early
years and child care sector in their communities. Please continue to let us know
how we can support your efforts during this challenging time”.

In a memo dated May 11, your Ministry communicated that it will not allow Service System
Managers to use any provincial funding to cover any shortfall that is not covered by the
federal wage subsidy program retroactively to March 15, 2020. Yet as noted above, the
March 21,2020 memo directed Service System Managers to continue to flow funding to
childcare centres and agencies.
We agreed whole-heartedly that the funding approach used by your Ministry during the
closure period must be to support financial sustainability of the Early Years and childcare
sectors from the beginning of the pandemic. We also believe that a stable and accessible
child care system will be critical to Ontario’s recovery following the COVID-19 outbreak.
Northern Ontario municipalities need to know that Federal and Provincial monies provided
during this difficult time will make this goal attainable and not pose an undue hardship on
our communities. Not permitting Service System Managers to utilize any provincial
funding retroactively to March 15, 2020 poses significant risk to both the municipalities
that contribute to the cost sharing of childcare centres, Early Years, and the operators
themselves.
Your Ministry depends on Service System Managers and our knowledge of the needs of
our communities to make decisions that best support the early years and child care sector
in our service areas. We depend on you and your government to be fair, equitable and
transparent with funding and mindful of communications protocols with outside
organizations that depend on Service Managers for funding.
The Manitoulin-Sudbury DSB asks that your Ministry rescind the decision communicated
in the May 11, 2020 memo and allow the use of provincial funding during the retroactive
period.

Respectfully,

Les Gamble
Chair, Manitoulin-Sudbury DSB

c.c.

AMO
NOSDA
OMSSA
Member Municipalities

The Corporation of the

Municipality of Huron Shores
Office of the Mayor
May 19, 2020
via email
Dear Mayor and Council
RE: Regional Broadband
Following the discharge of the Broadband Task Group under the Huron North
Community Economic Alliance (HNCEA), and just prior to the onslaught of the
COVID-19 Pandemic, the Council of the Municipality of Huron Shores appointed an
ad-hoc Broadband Committee to remain active in furthering broadband efforts in
the Municipality of Huron Shores.
Now, more than ever, our area is realizing the need for reliable and cost effective
rural broadband in our corridor of Northern Ontario. It is our intent to continue to
actively seek out effective rural broadband solutions. It has been shown from other
areas, such as the Eastern Ontario Regional Network (EORN), that a regional
approach will place us in a better position to seek out funding opportunities and
provide network opportunities to our most rural/remote areas.
I write to inquire as to your interest in establishing a network along the north shore
of Lake Huron, focused on delivering effective broadband that will serve and meet
all our needs in all of our communities well into the future. We will not be able to
access funding for possibly another 20 years.
We need, at minimum, 50
Mbps/10Mbps, which is beyond what has been offered by the big ISP providers. We
need to work on furthering our regional broadband efforts for our immediate needs
now and in the future.
I will be contacting all Mayors from Echo Bay to Nairn Centre, Elliot Lake, and
Espanola to Manitoulin Island, in order to obtain your thoughts. It is my hope that
an electronic meeting of all interested parties can be arranged as soon as possible.
Yours truly,

Georges Bilodeau
Mayor
c.c.

- MP Carol Hughes (carol.hughes@parl.gc.ca)
- MPP Michael Mantha (mmantha@ndp.on.ca)
- Ken Noland (burpeemills@vianet.ca)
- See Municipal Distribution List

P.O. Box 460, 7 Bridge Street, Iron Bridge, ON P0R 1H0
Phone 705-843-2033 * Fax 705-843-2035 * email@huronshores.ca

MUNICIPAL DISTRIBUTION LIST (via CAO to Mayor and Council)
ALGOMA DISTRICT
 Blind River, Town of - Kathryn Scott, katie.scott@blindriver.ca
 Bruce Mines, Town of - Donna Brunke, dbrunke@bellnet.ca
 Elliot Lake, City of – Daniel Gagnon, dgagnon@city.elliotlake.on.ca
 Hilton Beach, Village of - Peggy Cramp, peggy@hiltonbeach.com
 Hilton, Township of - Valerie Obarymskyj, admin@hiltontownship.ca
 Jocelyn, Township of - Janet Boucher, admin@jocelyn.ca
 Johnson, Township of - Chris Wray, cwray@johnsontownship.ca
 Laird, Township of - Phyllis MacKay, lairdtwp@soonet.ca
 Macdonald, Meredith and Aberdeen Add’l, Township of - Lynne Duguay,
lduguay@onlink.net
 Plummer Additional, Township of - Vicky Goertzen-Cooke, vgoertzencooke@ontera.net
 Spanish, Town of - Pam Lortie, pamlortie@townofspanish.com
 St. Joseph, Township of - Carol Trainor, stjoeadmin@bellnet.ca
 Tarbutt & Tarbutt Additional, Township of - Glenn Martin, tarbutttownship@bellnet.ca
 The North Shore, Township of - Mary Lynn Duguay, twpns@ontera.net
 Thessalon, Town of - Robert MacLean, robert.thessalon@bellnet.ca
MANITOULIN DISTRICT







Assiginack, Township of - Alton Hobbs, ahobbs@assiginack.ca
Billings, Township of - Kathy McDonald, kmcdonald@billingstwp.ca
Burpee and Mills, Township of - Patsy Gilchrist, pgilchrist787@gmail.com
Central Manitoulin, Municipality of - Ruth Frawley, centralm@amtelecom.net
Gordon/Barrie Island, Municipality of - Carrie Lewis, clerk@gordonbarrieisland.ca
 Gore Bay, Town of - Stasia Carr, scarr@gorebay.ca
 Northeastern Manitoulin and The Islands, Town of - David Williamson,
dwilliamson@townofnemi.on.ca
 Tehkummah, Township of - Silvio Berti, twptehk@amtelecom.net
SUDBURY DISTRICT






Baldwin, Township of - Karin Bates, karin@baldwin.ca
Espanola, Town of - Cynthia Townsend, ctownsend@espanola.ca
Nairn and Hyman, Township of - Belinda Ketchabaw, nairncentre@personainternet.com
Sables-Spanish Rivers, Township of – Kim Sloss, kasloss@sables-spanish.ca

May 28, 2020
Will Bouma, MPP
96 Nelson Street
Suite 101
Brantford, ON N3T 2X1
Sent via email will.bouma@pc.ola.org
Phil McColeman, MP
108 St. George Street
Suite 3
Brantford, ON N3R 1V6
Sent via email phil.mccoleman@parl.gc.ca

Re:

Essential Workers Day – March 17

Please be advised that Brantford City Council at its meeting held May 26, 2020 adopted the
following:
10.1

Essential Workers Day – Councillor Wall
WHEREAS the Province of Ontario enacted a Declaration of Emergency on March 17th,
2020 in response to the COVID-19 Worldwide Pandemic; and
WHEREAS during the state of emergency certain services have been deemed essential
services by the Government of Ontario; and
WHEREAS citizens are asked to isolate at home to reduce the spread of COVID-19 as
essential workers continue to work and provide an essential service to their community;
and
WHEREAS essential workers across the country are risking their lives; and
WHEREAS some essential workers have been stricken with illness, suffered trauma or
injury, or lost their lives as a result of providing an essential service; and
WHEREAS without this dedicated workforce, essential services, including but not limited
to, healthcare, police, fire, paramedics, military, social services, community services,
food distribution, agriculture, postal and delivery services, education, security, transit,
financial services, hospitality, commerce, manufacturing, construction, maintenance and
repair, waste management, sanitation services, government, and administrative services
would fail to function; and
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WHEREAS our community owes a profound debt of gratitude to every single essential
worker who ensured our community could continue to operate;
NOW THEREFORE, the Municipal Council of The Corporation of the City of Brantford
HEREBY RESOLVES as follows:
A. THAT March 17 BE PROCLAIMED by the Council for The Corporation of the City of
Brantford to be Essential Workers Day in the City of Brantford; and
B. THAT the Clerk BE DIRECTED to provide a copy of this resolution, with a covering
letter, to MPP Will Bouma and MP Phil McColeman to respectfully request that the
Government of Ontario and the Government of Canada formally declare March 17 to
be Essential Workers Day to honour all of the essential workers who sacrificed so
much during the COVID-19 pandemic; and
C. THAT all municipalities across Ontario and Canada BE INVITED to proclaim March
17 to be Essential Workers Day in their respective municipalities, and that a copy of
this resolution be provided to AMO, LUMCO, FCM, and ROMA for that purpose.

Tanya Daniels
City Clerk
tdaniels@brantford.ca
cc

All Ontario municipalities
Association of Municipalities of Ontario (AMO)
Large Urban Mayor’s Caucus of Ontario (LUMCO)
Federation of Canadian Municipalities
Rural Ontario Municipal Association (ROMA)

June 5, 2020

Prime Minister Justin Trudeau
Re:

PM@pm.gc.ca

Request of Support - Great Lakes Water Level

Dear Prime Minister Trudeau:
Please be advised the Municipal Council of the Township of Tay at its meeting of
May 27, 2020 supported Councillor Norris’s request that the municipality endorse a
resolution seeking the Government to intervene to better manage and control the
water levels of Lake Huron and Lake Michigan.
Following discussion, a motion was moved by Councillor Norris and seconded by
Councillor Raymond recommending the following to Council for consideration:
Whereas The Township of Tay borders the southeastern shores of
Georgian Bay on the Great Lakes of Lake Huron and Lake Michigan Basin;
And whereas the volume and height of Lake Huron and Lake Michigan
Basin has set unprecedented lows and highs from 2012 to 2020 of over 6
feet;
And whereas the high water is causing significant shoreline erosion,
flooding areas, extensive property damage to personal and municipal
infrastructure and further impacting wetlands, ecosystems and fish
habitats;
Now therefore, the Township of Tay seeks the Ontario Provincial
Government and the Government of Canada to intervene with the
International Joint Commission to better manage and control the
lake levels as set out within the IJC Mission Statement;
And further that the IJC take immediate action to lower the level of the
lakes to within a manageable average mean of each Great Lake And
further that this Resolution be forwarded to the approximately 50
municipalities and 25 Indigenous communities that border Lake Huron and
The Association of Municipalities of Ontario for support. Carried.
Cont’d…
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On behalf of Council, your consideration for support of the above resolution would
be greatly appreciated.
Regards,

Ted Walker,
Mayor
cc via email:
The Honourable Doug Ford, Premier of Ontario premier@ontario.ca
Bruce Stanton, MP Simcoe bruce.stanton.a1@parl.gc.ca
Honourable François–Philippe Champagne, Minister of Foreign Affairs
Francois-Philippe.Champagne@parl.gc.ca
Honourable Jill Dunlop, MPP Simcoe North jill.dunlop@pc.ola.org
Honourable Jeff Yurek, Minister of Environment, Conservation and Parks
jeff.yurek@pc.ola.org
Honourable John Yakabuski, Minister of Natural Resources and Forestry
john.yakabuski@pc.ola.org
Pierre Beland, Henry Lickers, Merrell-Ann Phare, Canadian Commissioners, Chair
International Joint Commission lobrichons@ottawa.ijc.org

Megan Bonenfant
From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:
Attachments:

carol.hughes.a2@parl.gc.ca on behalf of carol.hughes@parl.gc.ca
June 4, 2020 9:29 AM
mbonenfant@billingstwp.ca
RE: Commercial Rent Assistance Program
01052020 - Minister Ng re CECRA - Johns and Julian.pdf

Dear Ms. Bonenfort,
Thank you for sending me the Township of Billing’s resolution on the Commercial Rent Assistance Program, otherwise
known as Canada Emergency Commercial Rent Assistance (CECRA).
The suggested enhancements highlighted in the resolution are similar to the ones that I and my NDP colleagues have
been asking the government to adjust. Gord Johns, NDP Critic for Small Business, and Peter Julien, NDP Finance Critic,
recently wrote to Minister for Small Business Mary Ng calling for adjustments to CECRA. They have requested that
CECRA be changed to: include a moratorium on evictions for small business; open CECRA to commercial tenants, and
not just landlords, and; create a tiered system of commercial-rent support that addresses businesses outside of the 70%
threshold that would allow many businesses who have seen a drop in income to also receive support. I have attached a
copy of their intervention to Minister Ng for your reference.
In terms of the other measures in the resolution (allowing property owners to make 1 application for of their property
rather than individual applications; extending the program past June 2020; and making the program 100% forgivable), I
do believe that these are interesting proposals. I will discuss these proposals further with our critics.
Thank you again for sharing your resolution with me.
Sincerely,
Carol Hughes, MP
Algoma-Manitoulin-Kapuskasing

From: Megan Bonenfant <mbonenfant@billingstwp.ca>
Sent: June 1, 2020 2:05 PM
To: Trudeau, Justin - Député <justin.trudeau@parl.gc.ca>; premier@ontario.ca
Cc: Bill.Morneau@canada.ca; Minister.fin@ontario.ca; Hughes, Carol - M.P. <carol.hughes@parl.gc.ca>; mmanthaco@ndp.on.ca; skim@grimsby.ca
Subject: RE: Commercial Rent Assistance Program
Hello,
Please find attached correspondence on behalf of Council for the Township of Billings.
Thank you,

Megan Bonenfant
Deputy Clerk
Township of Billings
705.282.2611 ext. 225
mbonenfant@billingstwp.ca
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May 1, 2020
Minister Mary Ng
Minister of Small Business, Export Promotion and International Trade
House of Commons
Ottawa, ON
K1A 0A6
Dear Minister,
Our letter today is in response to the announcements made last week about the Canada
Emergency Commercial Rent Assistance (CECRA) for small businesses. While we
welcome the initiative - as we called for in our April 9 letter - the program, as
announced, does not do enough to support small businesses.
The government’s roll-out of previously announced initiatives for small businesses and
individuals still has huge gaps and the need for a National Commercial Rent moratorium
has never been clearer. Small businesses write to us every day concerned about
whether they’ll be able to open their doors in the coming months. With businesses
closed, sales severely reduced, rent due, and the uncertainty in what support they’ll be
able to get, many are making those decisions now. Businesses need to be assured that
they won’t be evicted.
CECRA needs to be open to all commercial tenants and not be left in the hands of
landlords. The program, as it’s designed, relies on the good will of landlords, and
according to the CFIB, nearly 31 per cent of businesses don’t believe their landlord will
support them even if they do qualify. These businesses need a strict moratorium on
evictions now.
Further, the existing requirement that landlords must have a secured mortgage
disqualifies many from receiving support. While CMHC says an alternative mechanism
will be used in these cases, without more clarity, businesses and landlords are not able
to make informed decisions or plan for their futures.
With rent due today, time is of the essence. We may soon witness the biggest collapse
of small business in Canadian history.
The qualifications also limit those businesses who are losing significant revenue from
receiving help. As you know, in order to qualify, businesses must be losing at least 70
per cent of their revenue. But, for small business operators, even a small loss of income
can lead to a permanent closure. Operating at 50 per cent of revenues is not a long-term
strategy and many businesses are expected to operate at significantly reduced revenues
for at least 4 months. While many have shifted their operations to involve curb-side
pickups, door-to-door delivery, or online shopping, they’re still struggling to keep paying

their staff and bills - including rent. It makes no sense that they still don’t qualify for
critical support.
This can be addressed by creating a tiered-system of commercial rent support. Where
businesses with 70 per cent drops in revenue can receive up to 50 per cent rental
support, businesses earning between 30 and 70 per cent of their pre-COVID revenue
could receive a lower amount. We implore you to work with the provinces and
territories to build this into the CECRA and ensure that all businesses that need help can
get it. The Canada Emergency Wage Subsidy (CEWS) uses a 30 per cent drop in gross
revenue as its qualifying condition and any business facing that level of revenue loss will
have a difficult time surviving once restrictions are lifted. The CECRA must be reflect the
reality businesses are experiencing and be consistent with other government programs.
Combined with the inaccessibility of the Canada Emergency Business Account (CEBA),
too many small businesses are falling through the cracks when government programs
are designed and implemented with exclusions as the focus.
As the Minister for Small Business, we know that you understand the importance of
small business contributions to local economies, the culture and spirit they bring to
communities, and their role in neighbourhoods and support systems. The changes we’re
proposing to the CECRA are crucial to ensure Canada’s businesses will be able to open
their doors and remain open, contributing and creating jobs for years to come.
Please don’t hesitate to reach out should you have any questions. Thank you for your
prompt attention in helping small businesses across Canada.
Sincerely,

Gord Johns, MP
Courtenay-Alberni

Peter Julian, MP
New Westminster-Burnaby

Megan Bonenfant
From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

carol.hughes.a2@parl.gc.ca on behalf of carol.hughes@parl.gc.ca
June 8, 2020 3:25 PM
mbonenfant@billingstwp.ca
RE: Universal Basic Income

Dear Ms. Bonenfant,
Thank you for sending me the Township of Billing’s resolution on Universal Basic Income (UBI).
The Federal NDP have been supportive of studying Universal Basic Incomes for quite some time. During the Covid-19
pandemic, we were first to propose a universal benefit for all Canadians as they committed to social distancing
measures. Since this crisis took hold we have been calling for the government to provide $2,000/month for every adult,
with an additional $250 per child during these challenging times. The government did use our idea as a basis for their
Canada Emergency Response Benefit (CERB). They did however water down our proposal to some degree, which still
allows some people to fall through the cracks.
Following the cancellation of the UBI pilot project in Ontario, NDP Leader Jagmeet Singh proposed having the federal
government fund the project to completion so that we would at least have the appropriate data to make an informed
decision on the UBI. However, the government never committed to funding the project once the Ontario government
decided to scrap it officially in March, 2019. Researchers at McMaster and Ryerson Universities compiled a report on
the UBI project in Ontario, and the results were quite good. It noted that most individuals who were working at the time
continued to do so, and health outcomes were better. You can read the full report here:
https://labourstudies.mcmaster.ca/documents/southern-ontarios-basic-income-experience.pdf
Given the pandemic, many political commenters have argued that now is the right time to test the effects of UBI. We do
have some support at the provincial level for pilot projects. The NDP government in BC, for example, have had a pilot
project going since 2018, and have advised that a report on the project will be available this summer. I am hopeful that
the data does show that it’s possible to commit to a UBI on a larger scale, as it could theoretically be a key tool to
combat poverty in Canada.
Thank you again for sharing the Township of Billing’s resolution on Universal Basic Income.
Sincerely,
Carol Hughes, MP
Algoma-Manitoulin-Kapuskasing

From: Megan Bonenfant <mbonenfant@billingstwp.ca>
Sent: June 8, 2020 2:28 PM
To: Trudeau, Justin - Député <justin.trudeau@parl.gc.ca>; premier@ontario.ca
Cc: MinisterMCCSS@ontario.ca; minister.mah@ontario.ca; Hughes, Carol - M.P. <carol.hughes@parl.gc.ca>; mmanthaco@ndp.on.ca; amo@amo.on.ca; info@fcm.ca; jeff.bunn@kitchener.ca
Subject: RE: Universal Basic Income
Good afternoon,
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Please find attached correspondence on behalf of Council for the Township of Billings.
Thank you,

Megan Bonenfant
Deputy Clerk
Township of Billings
705.282.2611 ext. 225
mbonenfant@billingstwp.ca

2

MANITOULIN-SUDBURY
DISTRICT SERVICES BOARD
Financial Statements
Year Ended December 31, 2019

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
The accompanying financial statements of Manitoulin-Sudbury District Services Board (“Board”) are the
responsibility of the Board’s management and have been prepared in compliance with legislation, and in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards established by the Public Sector Accounting
Board of the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada. A summary of the significant accounting
policies are described in Note 1 to these financial statements. The preparation of the financial statements
necessarily involves the use of estimates based on management’s judgement, particularly when transactions
affecting the current accounting period cannot be finalized with certainty until future periods.
The Board’s management maintains a system of internal controls designed to provide reasonable assurance
that assets are safeguarded, transactions are properly authorized and recorded in compliance with legislative
and regulatory requirements and reliable financial information is available on a timely basis for preparation of
the financial statements. These systems are monitored and evaluated by management.
The Board members meets with management and the external auditors to review the financial statements and
discuss any significant financial reporting or internal control matters prior to their approval of the financial
statements.
The financial statements have been audited by Freelandt Caldwell Reilly LLP, independent external auditors
appointed by the Board. The accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report outlines their responsibilities, the
scope of their examination and their opinion on the Board’s financial statements.

________________________________________
Chief Administrator Officer

________________May 28, 2020_____________
Date

______________________________________
Director of Finance

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (continued)
Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. As part of an audit in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:










Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the organization's internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the organization's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the organization to
cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.
FREELANDT CALDWELL REILLY LLP

Chartered Professional Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants
Espanola, Ontario
May 28, 2020

MANITOULIN-SUDBURY DISTRICT SERVICES BOARD
Statement of Financial Position
Year ended December 31, 2019 with comparative figures for 2018

2019
$

2018
$

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Deferred contributions (note 4)
Capital lease obligation (note 6)
Net assets (note 7)

10,753,113
448,225

10,149,782
396,528

11,201,338

10,546,310

5,745,973
1,093,763
420,163

5,872,250
816,456
560,218

7,259,899

7,248,924

3,941,439

3,297,386

16,282,508
201,803
378,000

17,463,724
178,086
372,117

16,862,311

18,013,927

20,803,750

21,311,313

Non-financial Assets (note 8)
Tangible capital assets (note 9)
Prepaid expenses
Prepaid assistance
Accumulated Surplus
Contingent liabilities (note 10)

Approved by the Board of Directors:
__________________________________
__________________________________

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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MANITOULIN-SUDBURY DISTRICT SERVICES BOARD
Statement of Operations and Changes in Accumulated Surplus
Year ended December 31, 2019 with comparative figures for 2018

2019
Budget
$

2019
Actual
$

2018
Actual
$

Revenue
Ontario Works Administration Programs
Land ambulance / EMS Services
Social Housing
Child Care Programs
Homelessness Programs
Other revenue
Total revenue

8,846,687
16,541,402
4,814,887
7,242,560
682,831
229,741

7,652,370
16,845,719
5,098,792
9,269,631
518,158
396,403

8,047,528
17,006,255
4,839,125
9,269,921
635,857
405,191

38,358,108

39,781,073

40,203,877

8,846,687
15,731,131
4,807,437
7,563,210
682,831
287,392

7,619,259
17,154,370
5,447,651
9,269,631
518,158
279,567

8,035,564
17,560,876
4,901,646
9,269,921
635,857
278,372

37,918,688

40,288,636

40,682,236

Expenditures
Ontario Works Administration Programs
Land ambulance / EMS Services
Social Housing
Child Care Programs
Homelessness Programs
Other expenditures
Total expenditures
Annual surplus (deficit) before undernoted item

439,420

(507,563)

Refund of prior years' Municipal Apportionment
Annual surplus (deficit)

(478,359)
(139,090)

439,420

(507,563)

(617,449)

Accumulated surplus, beginning of year

21,311,313

21,311,313

21,928,762

Accumulated surplus, end of year

21,750,733

20,803,750

21,311,313

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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MANITOULIN-SUDBURY DISTRICT SERVICES BOARD
Statement of Changes in Net Assets
Year ended December 31, 2019 with comparative figures for 2018

Annual surplus (deficit)

2019
Budget
$

2019
Actual
$

2018
Actual
$

439,420

(507,563)

(617,449)

-

(467,957)
1,584,719
(117,893)
182,347
(23,717)
(5,883)

(1,064,070)
1,598,237
(15,491)
30,713
3,542
(15,534)

Acquisition of tangible capital assets
Amortization of tangible capital assets
Gain on disposal of tangible capital assets
Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital assets
Change in prepaid expenses
Change in prepaid assistance
Change in net assets

439,420

644,053

(80,052)

Net assets, beginning of year

3,297,386

3,297,386

3,377,438

Net assets, end of year

3,736,806

3,941,439

3,297,386

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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MANITOULIN-SUDBURY DISTRICT SERVICES BOARD
Statement of Cash Flows
Year ended December 31, 2019 with comparative figures for 2018

2019
$

2018
$

(507,563)

(617,449)

1,584,719
(117,893)

1,598,237
(15,491)

(51,697)
(126,277)
277,307
(23,717)
(5,883)

266,709
1,004,132
42,430
3,542
(15,534)

Cash flows from operations
Annual surplus (deficit)
Non-cash items including amortization
Amortization of tangible capital assets
Gain on disposal of tangible capital assets
Changes in non-cash assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Deferred contributions
Prepaid expenses
Prepaid assistance

1,028,996

2,266,576

Capital transactions
Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital assets
Cash used to acquire tangible capital assets

182,347
(467,957)

30,713
(1,064,070)

(285,610)

(1,033,357)

(140,055)
-

(140,055)
(15,751)

(140,055)

(155,806)

Financing transactions
Repayment of capital lease obligation
Repayment of mortgage payable
Increase in cash

603,331

1,077,413

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

10,149,782

9,072,369

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

10,753,113

10,149,782

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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MANITOULIN-SUDBURY DISTRICT SERVICES BOARD
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended December 31, 2019

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The financial statements of the Board are the representation of management. The financial statements
are prepared using Canadian public sector accounting standards as recommended by the Public Sector
Accounting Board (PSAB) of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants.
a)

Basis of accounting
The accrual basis of accounting recognizes revenues as they become available and measurable;
expenditures are recognized as they are incurred and measurable as a result of receipt of goods or
services and the creation of a legal obligation to pay.

b)

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and balances held by major financial
institutions and short-term investments which are readily convertible into a known amount of
cash and are subject to an insignificant risk to changes in fair value.

c)

Leases
Leases are classified as either capital or operating leases. Leases that transfer substantially all of
the benefits and inherent risks of ownership of property to the company are accounted for as
capital leases. At the time a capital lease is entered into, an asset is recorded together with its
related long-term obligation to reflect the acquisition and financing. Equipment recorded under
capital leases is amortized on the same basis as described below. Payments under operating
leases are expensed as incurred.

d)

Tangible capital assets
Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost. The Board provides for the amortization using the
straight-line method designed to amortize the cost, less any residual value, of the tangible capital
asset over the estimated useful life of the asset. The annual amortization rates are follows:
Assets

Basis

Buildings
Computer equipment
Vehicles, machinery and equipment
Furniture, fixtures, and other equipment
Software

Straight-line
Straight-line
Straight-line
Straight-line
Straight-line

Rate
%
4
30
30
20
100

Additions are amortized at the full annual rate in the year of acquisition. No amortization is
recorded in the year of disposal.
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MANITOULIN-SUDBURY DISTRICT SERVICES BOARD
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended December 31, 2019
1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
e)

Revenue recognition and deferred contributions
Revenue from government grants and contributions are recognized in the period that the events
giving rise to the government transfer have occurred as long as: the transfer is authorized; the
eligibility criteria, if any, have been met; and the amount can reasonably be estimated.
Government contributions received before these criteria have been met are recorded in the
accounts as deferred contributions in the year of receipt and are recognized as revenue in the
period in which all the recognition criteria have been met.
Other revenues including certain user fees, rents and interest are recorded on the accrual basis,
when earned, if the amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and collection is
reasonably assured.
Provincial Ministries subsidize the operations of the Manitoulin-Sudbury District Services Board.
Since the operations are reviewed by the Ministries in the subsequent fiscal period, subsidy
adjustments, if any, are recorded in the year in which the adjustments are determined.

f)

Forgivable loans
Forgivable loans issued under the Investment in Affordable Housing (IAH) program are treated
initially as a grant and expensed when issued. If the recipient meets all the conditions under the
IAH program this loan is forgiven and no amount is recovered. If they fail to meet the conditions,
the loan is recovered and recorded as a gain which is offset against the current year expense.

g)

Financial instruments
Measurement of financial instruments

The Board initially measures its financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value adjusted
by, in the case of a financial instrument that will not be measured subsequently at fair value,
the amount of transaction costs directly attributable to the instrument.
The Board subsequently measures its financial assets and financial liabilities at amortized
cost, except for investments in equity securities that are quoted in an active market, which are
subsequently measured at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognized in annual surplus in
the period they occur.
Financial assets measured at amortized cost include cash and cash equivalents, and accounts
receivable.
Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost include accounts payable and accrued
liabilities and capital lease obligation.
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MANITOULIN-SUDBURY DISTRICT SERVICES BOARD
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended December 31, 2019

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

g)

Financial instruments (continued)
Impairment
Financial assets measured at other than fair value are tested for impairment when there are
indicators of possible impairments. When a significant adverse change has occurred during
the period in the expected timing or amount of future cash flows from the financial asset or
group of assets, a write-down is recognized in the annual surplus.
When events occurring after the impairment confirm that a reversal is necessary, the reversal
is recognized in the annual surplus, in the period it is identified and measurable up to the
amount of the previously recognized impairment.

h)

Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of certain assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
reported amounts of certain revenues and expenditures during the reporting period. By their
nature, these estimates are subject to measurement uncertainty. The effect of changes in such
estimates on the financial statements in future periods could be significant. Estimates used in the
preparation of the accompanying financial statements include certain accounts receivable,
allowances for accounts receivable, certain deferred contributions, amounts repayable to certain
funders and the estimated useful lives of tangible capital assets.
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MANITOULIN-SUDBURY DISTRICT SERVICES BOARD
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended December 31, 2019

2.

MUNICIPAL APPORTIONMENT
Municipal apportionment is allocated to programs as follows:

2019
$
Ontario Works
Land Ambulance
Social Housing
Child Care
Administration

1,049,200
6,626,619
2,251,734
626,038
(99,163)
10,454,428

2018
$
1,035,400
6,533,090
2,242,459
626,038
(99,163)
10,337,824

2019
%

2018
%

11.360
6.320
1.120
1.460
5.490
3.680
11.210
1.850
0.220
2.670
1.380
1.350
3.310
7.450
1.460
10.060
3.530
6.180

11.460
6.270
1.100
1.470
5.430
3.700
11.210
1.830
0.220
2.630
1.350
1.370
3.330
7.420
1.440
10.190
3.530
6.170

19.900

19.900

Municipal Percentage Share
Town of Espanola
Township of Sables-Spanish Rivers
Township of Baldwin
Township of Nairn and Hyman
Municipality of Markstay - Warren
Municipality of St. Charles
Municipality of French River
Town of Chapleau
Township of Cockburn Island
Township of Gordon and Barrie Island
Township of Burpee and Mills
Town of Gore Bay
Township of Billings
Township of Central Manitoulin
Township of Tehkummah
Township of Northeastern Manitoulin and the Islands
Township of Assiginack
Municipality of Killarney
Other unorganized areas within the
Manitoulin-Sudbury Districts
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MANITOULIN-SUDBURY DISTRICT SERVICES BOARD
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended December 31, 2019

3.

PENSION AGREEMENTS
The Board makes contributions to the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement Fund (OMERS), which
is a multi-employer plan, on behalf of the members of its staff. The plan is a defined benefit plan which
specifies the amount of the retirement benefit to be received by the employees based on the length of
service and rates of pay.
The amount contributed to OMERS for 2019 was $1,081,634 (2018 - $1,057,582) for current service
and is included on the statement of operations and changes in accumulated surplus.
At December 31, 2019, the OMERS pension plan had total assets of $122.5 billion (2018 - $111.8
billion) and an accumulated deficit of $3.397 billion (2018 - $4.191 billion deficit).

4.

DEFERRED CONTRIBUTIONS
Deferred contributions consist of unspent provincial subsidies for the following programs:

Ontario Works
Land Ambulance
Social Housing
Child Care
Homelessness

5.

2019
$

2018
$

26,873
514,570
362,150
87,567
102,603

20,264
320,262
430,796
42,086
3,048

1,093,763

816,456

COMMITMENTS
The Board rents office and EMS service space under leases with terms as follows:

Annual Rent
$
Noelville - EMS
Little Current - OW
Warren - OW
Killarney - EMS

46,319
26,105
14,861
38,731

Expiry date
2029
2029
2021
2029

In addition, the Board rents office and EMS space in several locations under month to month leases
with no specific term.
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MANITOULIN-SUDBURY DISTRICT SERVICES BOARD
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended December 31, 2019

6.

CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATION
The capital lease is recorded at an amount equal to the present value of the minimum lease payments
using the lower of the company’s incremental borrowing rate and the interest rate implicit in the lease.
The interest rate on this obligation is 2%. The following is a schedule of future minimum lease
payments under capital leases:

$
2020
2021
2022

140,055
140,054
140,055
420,164

The capital lease is secured by equipment with a net book value of $420,164 (2018 - $560,218) which
is included in furniture, fixtures and other equipment (see tangible capital assets note 9).
Interest charges to the accounts of the company on the lease during the year amounted to $8,182.
7.

NET ASSETS
The balance on the statement of financial position of net assets at the end of the year is comprised
of the following:

2019
$

2018
$

To be used:
for the general increase in (reduction of) annual
operations
for reserves and reserve funds (schedule 7)
Total net assets

8.

(1,010,117)
4,951,556

(1,042,359)
4,339,745

3,941,439

3,297,386

NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
Tangible capital assets, prepaid expenses and prepaid assistance are accounted for as assets by the
Board, because they can be used to provide services in future periods. These assets do not normally
provide resources to discharge liabilities of the Board unless they are sold.
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MANITOULIN-SUDBURY DISTRICT SERVICES BOARD
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended December 31, 2019
9.

TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital Work
in Progress
$
Cost
Balance, beginning of year
Additions
Disposals
Balance, end of year
Accumulated Amortization
Balance, beginning of year
Disposals
Amortization expense
Balance, end of year
Net book value

Land
$

Buildings
$

-

4,744,410

23,005,083

-

(22,527)
4,721,883

(90,109)
22,914,974

-

-

-

4,721,883

12,751,475
(54,066)
794,618
13,492,027
9,422,947

Capital Work
in Progress
$

Land
$

Buildings
$

Furniture,
fixtures, and
other
equipment
$

Computer
Equipment
$

2,560,408
21,131

334,728

2,581,539

334,728

1,479,379

269,463

323,450
1,802,829
778,710
Furniture,
fixtures, and
other
equipment
$

23,119
292,582
42,146

Computer
Equipment
$

Vehicles,
Machinery &
Equipment
$

2019
Total
$

4,056,646
446,826
(918,736)
3,584,736

34,701,275
467,957
(1,031,372)
34,137,860

2,737,234
(912,852)
443,532
2,267,914
1,316,822

17,237,551
(966,918)
1,584,719
17,855,352
16,282,508

Vehicles,
Machinery &
Equipment
$

2018
Total
$

Cost
Balance, beginning of year
Additions
Disposals
Balance, end of year

-

4,744,410
4,744,410

22,930,961
74,122
23,005,083

2,097,911
462,497
2,560,408

264,485
70,243
334,728

3,893,655
457,208
(294,217)
4,056,646

33,931,422
1,064,070
(294,217)
34,701,275

Accumulated Amortization
Balance, beginning of year
Disposals
Amortization expense
Balance, end of year
Net book value

-

4,744,410

11,953,853
797,622
12,751,475
10,253,608

1,146,870
332,509
1,479,379
1,081,029

243,837
25,626
269,463
65,265

2,573,749
(278,995)
442,480
2,737,234
1,319,412

15,918,309
(278,995)
1,598,237
17,237,551
17,463,724
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MANITOULIN-SUDBURY DISTRICT SERVICES BOARD
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended December 31, 2019

9.

TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS (continued)
Included in furniture, fixtures and other equipment are assets under capital lease with cost and
accumulated amortization of $980,381 (2018 - $980,381) and $560,216 (2018 - $420,163),
respectively.

10.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The Board is contingently liable for accumulated sick leave in the amount of $148,030 (2018 $160,798) for EMS employees. Accumulated sick leave is only payable to cover illness related
absences and there is no liability to pay any amounts to employees on change or termination of
employment.
No liability is reflected in these financial statements for the accumulated sick leave to EMS employees.
Provincial Ministries subsidize the operations of the Manitoulin-Sudbury District Services Board. Since
the operations are reviewed by the Ministries in the subsequent fiscal period, subsidy adjustments, if
any, are recorded in the year in which the adjustments are determined.

11.

FORGIVABLE LOANS
Included in the Social Housing Program expenditures is $339,675 (2018 - $255,864) in grants with
forgivable conditions. These grants are issued to low income home owners as forgivable loans. The
loans are to be written off over 10 years. However, if the house is sold before the 10-year forgiveness
period, the home owner must repay a pro-rated amount back to the Board. If the Board receives funds
because of a homeowner selling their property, the amount is used by the Board to grant a new loan to
another low income home owner.
During the year, funds received back from homeowners under this program amounted to $106,753
(2018 - $70,565) which have been offset with the current year expense.

12.

EXPENDITURES BY OBJECT
As required by Section 1201.086 of the Public Sector Accounting Board reporting requirements,
these financial statements report on the Board’s expenditures by function. The Board’s
expenditures by object are as follows:

2019
$
Salaries, wages and benefits
Contracted services
Materials
Rents and financial items
Interest on mortgage payable
External transfers
Amortization of tangible capital assets

2018
$

16,560,782
12,363,962
2,630,768
489,772
6,658,633
1,584,719

16,656,324
12,156,733
2,719,018
436,533
269
7,115,122
1,598,237

40,288,636

40,682,236
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MANITOULIN-SUDBURY DISTRICT SERVICES BOARD
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended December 31, 2019

13.

BUDGET AND OPERATING RESULTS
The Budget adopted by the Board was not prepared on a basis consistent with that used to report actual
results in the financial statements. The budget was prepared on a modified accrual basis while public
sector accounting standards require the full accrual basis. The budget figures expense all tangible
capital acquisitions and does not include a provision for amortization expense. As a result, the budget
figures presented in the statements of operations and changes in net assets represent the budget adopted
by the Board adjusted as follows:

2019
$
Budget surplus approved by the Board
Add: Net budgeted transfers (to)/from reserves and reserve funds

439,420
(439,420)
-

Similarly, the actual operating results for the year are presented using public sector accounting
standards which require the full accrual basis. Thus, the actual operating results presented in the
statements of operations and changes in net assets represent actual results adjusted as follows:

2019
$
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures before undernoted items per
schedules/programs:
Ontario Works Administration Programs - Schedule 1
Land Ambulance / EMS Services - Schedule 2
Social Housing Programs - Schedule 3
Child Care Programs - Schedule 4
Homelessness Programs - Schedule 5
Other Revenue and Expenditures - Schedule 6

(69,307)
46,919
(170,161)
114,336
(78,213)

Add: Net transfers (to)/from reserves and reserve funds - prior

71,036

Deficiency of revenues over expenditures before adjustments below

(7,177)

Adjustment to Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standards:
Add: Net transfers (to)/from reserves and reserve funds - current
Less: Net tangible capital acquisitions, proceeds and amortization
Annual surplus (deficit) before refund of prior year Municipal Apportionment

540,776
(1,041,162)
(507,563)
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MANITOULIN-SUDBURY DISTRICT SERVICES BOARD
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended December 31, 2019

14.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT
Subsequent to year end, the COVID-19 global outbreak was declared a pandemic by the World Health
Organization in March 2020. The negative impact of COVID-19 in Canada and on the global economy
has been significant. The global pandemic has disrupted economic activities and supply chains
resulting in governments worldwide, and in Canada, enacting emergency measures to combat the
spread of the virus and protect the economy.
These financial statements have been prepared based upon conditions existing at December 31, 2019
and considering those events occurring subsequent to that date, that provide evidence of conditions that
existed at that date. As the outbreak of COVID-19 occurred after December 31, 2019, its impact is
considered an event that is indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period and
accordingly, no adjustments have been made to these financial statements for the impacts of COVID19.
Although the disruption from the pandemic is expected to be temporary, given the dynamic nature of
these circumstances, the duration and severity of the disruption and related financial impact cannot be
reasonably estimated at this time. The Board’s ability to continue to service debt and meet obligations
as they come due is dependent on its continued ability to generate cash flows. At this time, the full
potential impact of COVID-19 on the Board is not known.

15.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Transactions in financial instruments may result in an entity assuming or transferring financial
instruments to or from another party. The Board is exposed to the following risks associated with
financial instruments and transactions it is a party to:
(a)

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial transaction will fail to discharge a financial
obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Board is exposed to this risk
relating to its cash and cash equivalents and accounts receivable.
The Board minimizes risk associated with cash and cash equivalents by ensuring these financial
assets are placed with large reputable financial institutions with high credit ratings.
The Board incurs receivable transactions, in the normal course of operations, and is exposed to
credit risk associated with its accounts receivable balances of $448,225 (2018 - $396,528). The
Board minimizes this risk through management’s on-going monitoring of amounts due to the
organization and collections. Valuations of amounts due to the organization are performed on a
regular basis and adjustments for amounts determined to be uncollectable are recorded when
applicable.
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MANITOULIN-SUDBURY DISTRICT SERVICES BOARD
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended December 31, 2019

15.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b)

Concentration risk
Concentration risk is the risk that an entity’s balance due to the Board has a value of more than
ten percent of the total accounts receivable and thus there is a higher risk to the Board in the
event of a default by one of these entities. At December 31, 2019 receivables from two
organization comprised approximately 36% of the total outstanding receivables. The Board
reduces this risk by regularly assessing the credit risk associated with these accounts and closely
monitors any overdue balances.

(c)

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that an organization cannot repay its obligations when they become due
to its creditors. The Board is exposed to this risk associated with its accounts payable and
accrued liabilities balances of $5,745,973 (2018 - $5,872,250). The Board reduces its exposure
to liquidity risk by ensuring that it documents when authorized payments become due, and
maintains adequate cash resources to repay creditors, mortgage interest and principal and capital
lease obligation principal and interest as those liabilities become due.

(d)

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the potential for financial loss caused by fluctuations in fair value or future
cash flows of financial instruments because of changes in market interest rates. The Board is
exposed to this risk through its interest-bearing cash balances, the interest rates of which change
over time due to a variety of financial market factors and may cause changes in interest earnings
in future periods.
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SCHEDULE 1

MANITOULIN-SUDBURY DISTRICT SERVICES BOARD
ONTARIO WORKS ADMINISTRATION PROGRAMS
Schedule of Revenue and Expenditures
Year ended December 31, 2019 with comparative figures for 2018

Revenue
Provincial Subsidy
OW General
OW Administration and Employment programs
Employment Ontario
Youth Job Connection
Canada Ontario Job Grant
Other subsidy
Municipal apportionment
Total revenue
Expenditures
OW General
Administration and Employment Expenses
(Schedule 1A)
Employment Ontario
Youth Job Connection
National Child Benefit
Canada Ontario Job Grant expense
Other subsidy expense
Total expenditures
Excess of revenue over expenditures before net
transfers to reserves

2019
Budget
$

2019
Actual
$

2018
Actual
$

5,889,449
1,394,900
247,211
230,927
35,000
1,049,200
8,846,687

4,865,586
1,414,300
190,136
122,224
4,204
2,605
1,049,200
7,648,255

5,134,694
1,394,900
271,067
197,904
6,654
2,612
1,035,400
8,043,231

5,889,449

4,865,586

5,123,348

2,323,700
247,211
230,927
120,400
35,000
8,846,687

2,291,518
190,136
122,224
120,386
4,204
2,605
7,596,659

2,306,589
271,067
197,904
120,400
6,654
2,580
8,028,542

Transfer to reserves - current
Transfer to reserves - prior
Net transfer to reserves

-

51,596
(32,393)
(88,510)
(120,903)

14,689
(17,111)
(1,318)
(18,429)

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures
before undernoted items
Capital assets included in expenditures
Proceeds on disposition included in expenditures
Gain on disposition of capital assets
Amortization of capital assets
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures

-

(69,307)
25,875
(10,000)
4,115
(38,475)
(87,792)

(3,740)
50,218
(19,519)
4,297
(37,721)
(6,465)
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SCHEDULE 1A

MANITOULIN-SUDBURY DISTRICT SERVICES BOARD
Analysis of Ontario Works Administration Expenditures
Year ended December 31, 2019 with comparative figures for 2018

2019
Budget
$

2019
Actual
$

2018
Actual
$

1,502,723
359,700
77,926
145,000
73,712
71,094
32,794
21,582
19,088
10,585
6,938
984
1,574

1,457,558
363,067
103,247
141,633
72,094
65,440
25,517
19,537
18,480
14,593
7,868
1,344
1,140

1,252,710
655,727
100,225
79,441
68,668
66,364
25,067
22,317
13,714
12,488
8,491
950
427

2,323,700

2,291,518

2,306,589

Administration and Employment Expenses
Salaries and benefits
Purchased services
Travel and training
Employment funded expenses - CPE and ERE training
Computer software and hardware
Accommodation costs
Office supplies and postage
Insurance
Board travel, meetings
Telephone and communications
Audit and accounting fee
Advertising
Legal and consulting fee
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SCHEDULE 2

MANITOULIN-SUDBURY DISTRICT SERVICES BOARD
LAND AMBULANCE / EMS SERVICES
Schedule of Revenue and Expenditures
Year ended December 31, 2019 with comparative figures for 2018

2019
Budget
$

2019
Actual
$

2018
Actual
$

7,873,080
2,013,703
28,000
6,626,619

7,824,537
1,949,942
351,976
58,967
2,121
6,626,619

7,813,368
2,082,591
478,655
87,067
290
6,533,090

Total revenue

16,541,402

16,814,162

16,995,061

Expenditures
Salaries and benefits
Wikwemikong expenses (Schedule 2A)
Capital expenditures
Vehicle expenses
Patient transfer services
Building expenses
Transportation and communication
Administrative expenses
Medical supplies and equipment
Other supplies and equipment
Community Paramedicine expenses
Interest expense

11,861,072
2,013,703
522,871
355,558
449,595
273,868
166,774
35,644
52,046

12,096,434
1,949,940
600,580
576,389
349,555
346,831
316,318
262,314
189,179
92,665
58,967
52,046

12,258,771
2,082,591
887,781
640,276
478,655
399,585
246,402
238,836
159,978
139,265
87,067
55,084

15,731,131

16,891,218

17,674,291

Revenue
Provincial Subsidy
Operating
Wikwemikong (Schedule 2A)
Patient Transfer Service
Community Paramedicine
Other
Municipal apportionment

Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures before
net transfers (to) from reserves
Transfer from reserves - current
Transfer to reserves - current
Transfer from reserves - prior
Net transfer (to) from reserves
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures before
undernoted items
Capital assets included in expenditures
Capital lease expenditures
Proceeds on disposition included in expenditures
Gain on disposition of capital assets
Amortization of capital assets
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures

810,271
(810,271)
(810,271)

(77,056)

(679,230)

672,528
(1,014,815)
466,262

998,072
(785,104)
38,684

123,975

251,652

-

46,919

(427,578)

-

442,083
140,054
(31,557)
31,557
(813,732)
(184,676)

804,498
140,054
(11,194)
11,194
(819,943)
(302,969)
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SCHEDULE 2A

MANITOULIN-SUDBURY DISTRICT SERVICES BOARD
Analysis of Wikwemikong Ambulance Expenditures
Year ended December 31, 2019 with comparative figures for 2018

January to
March
2019 Budget (3 months)
$
$
Revenue
Provincial subsidy
Expenditures
Salaries and benefits
Vehicle expenses
Administration costs
Transportation and
communication
Building expenses
Medical supplies and
equipment
Other services
One time expenses
Other supplies
Vehicle purchases
Total expenditures

2,013,703

826,322

1,705,216
67,900
109,460

542,523
29,405
196,856

25,097
33,018

10,814
6,673

33,078
18,940
20,994
2,013,703

6,303
6,775
24,832
2,140
826,321

April to
December
(9 months)
$
1,123,620
1,127,694
72,881
(153,084)
22,928
21,511
14,132
13,106
(8,940)
13,391
1,123,619

2019
Total
$

2018
Total
$

1,949,942

2,082,591

1,670,217
102,286
43,772

1,684,085
110,028
(4,245)

33,742
28,184

33,703
36,088

20,435
19,881
15,892
15,531
1,949,940

30,088
12,915
101,142
20,221
58,566
2,082,591
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SCHEDULE 3

MANITOULIN-SUDBURY DISTRICT SERVICES BOARD
SOCIAL HOUSING PROGRAMS

Schedule of Revenue and Expenditures
Year ended December 31, 2019 with comparative figures for 2018

Revenue
Rental income
Federal subsidy
Provincial Subsidy
IAH program
SIF program
IEC program
Municipal apportionment
Total revenue
Expenditures
Wages and benefits
Utilities
Maintenance materials and services
Transfer to Non-Profit Housing
Capital expenditures
Urban native rent supplement
Housing mortgage costs
IAH program
Municipal taxes
Rent allowance agreement
SIF expenses
Administration
Insurance
IEC expenses
Transportation and equipment
Office rent
Housing rent supplement
Bad debts - rental
Professional fees
Other
Interest on long-term debt
Total expenditures
Excess of revenue over expenditures before
net transfers (to) from reserves
Transfer from reserves - current
Transfer to reserves - current
Transfer to reserves - prior
Net transfer from (to) reserves
Excess (deficiency) revenue over expenditures before
undernoted items
Capital assets included in expenditures
Amortization of capital assets
Proceeds on disposition included in expenditures
Gain on disposition of capital assets
Repayment of mortgage payable
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures

2019
Budget
$

2019
Actual
$

2018
Actual
$

1,271,484
899,759

1,373,115
945,537

1,250,646
981,708

297,518
94,392
2,251,734
4,814,887

284,669
94,676
66,840
2,251,734
5,016,571

230,957
130,875
2,480
2,242,459
4,839,125

993,393
613,676
442,937
477,312
417,091
297,623
302,850
297,518
220,741
309,083
94,392
83,891
81,336
67,244
31,261
35,584
24,931
9,074
7,500
4,807,437

818,436
621,783
527,401
478,156
343,891
300,121
302,850
284,669
211,860
309,083
94,676
76,660
79,191
66,840
53,198
28,501
26,700
20,407
10,698
1,610
4,656,731

802,037
607,609
453,736
450,410
422,674
306,903
302,850
230,957
209,871
149,083
130,875
93,403
76,121
2,480
68,411
26,770
23,109
15,050
8,865
3,592
269
4,385,075

7,450
417,091
(424,541)
(7,450)
-

359,840
484,683
(565,896)
(448,788)
(530,001)

454,050
422,674
(412,185)
(71,919)
(61,430)

(170,161)

392,620
139,111
(639,931)

(650,128)
(140,792)
82,221
(878,860)

(15,751)
(123,951)
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SCHEDULE 4

MANITOULIN-SUDBURY DISTRICT SERVICES BOARD
CHILD CARE PROGRAMS

Schedule of Revenue and Expenditures
Year ended December 31, 2019 with comparative figures for 2018

Revenue
Provincial Subsidy
MEDU operating subsidy
Resource Centre
Indigenous Led Child and Family Programs
Administration
Data Analysis Coordinator
Planning subsidy
Municipal apportionment
Total revenue
Expenditures
Child care
Operating grant expenses
Expansion expenses
Special needs resources
Purchase of service
ELCC expenses
Wage enhancement
Indigenous Led Child and Family Programs
Capacity building
Salaries and benefits
Repairs and maintenance
Play based materials and equipment
Ontario works
Expansion admin expenses
Administration costs
Home child care expenses
Fee stabilization
Family support program
Resource Centres
Data analysis coordinator
Planning expenses
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures
before net transfers to reserves
Transfer to reserves - current
Transfer to reserves - prior
Net transfer to reserves
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures

2019
Budget
$

2019
Actual
$

2018
Actual
$

4,532,058
1,391,615
320,650
242,946
99,153
30,100
626,038
7,242,560

6,589,955
1,338,556
320,650
291,180
73,152
30,100
626,038
9,269,631

6,636,714
1,317,064
364,650
222,202
73,153
30,100
626,038
9,269,921

1,324,125
976,541
550,000
566,367
420,859
337,023
320,650
298,000
497,007
145,000
170,780
121,424
105,000
96,262
25,875
87,429
6,042,342

2,629,603
1,389,800
633,459
598,311
462,915
432,834
320,650
298,000
238,283
171,912
170,782
121,424
104,415
97,982
27,600
21,852
7,719,822

2,310,452
1,586,361
569,244
568,538
483,988
323,969
364,650
253,100
465,649
168,195
305,856
121,423
106,875
25,875
87,429
7,741,604

1,391,615
99,153
30,100
1,520,868
7,563,210

1,446,556
73,153
30,100
1,549,809
9,269,631

1,425,064
73,153
30,100
1,528,317
9,269,921

-

-

(320,650)
(320,650)
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SCHEDULE 5

MANITOULIN-SUDBURY DISTRICT SERVICES BOARD
HOMELESSNESS PROGRAMS

Schedule of Revenue and Expenditures
Year ended December 31, 2019 with comparative figures for 2018

2019
Budget
$

January to
March
(3 months)
$

April to
December
(9 months)
$

682,831
-

169,353
2,813

345,217
775

514,570
3,588

632,507
3,350

682,831

172,166

345,992

518,158

635,857

440,831

15,709

243,389

259,098

319,636

155,000

128,763

27,000

155,763

165,938

80,000

27,192

50,375

77,567

88,689

-

-

20,131

20,131

60,039

-

-

3,588

3,588

-

7,000

502

1,509

2,011

1,555

682,831

172,166

345,992

518,158

635,857

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

2019
Total
$

2018
Total
$

Revenue
Provincial subsidy - CHPI
Provincial subsidy - OESP
Expenditures
Program expense
- Housing with Related Supports
Program expense
- Emergency Shelter Solutions
Program expense
- Homelessness Prevention
Program expense
- CHPI Administration Expenses
Program expense
- OESP Expenses
Program expense
- Other Services and Support
Total expenditures
Excess of revenue over
expenditures
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SCHEDULE 6

MANITOULIN-SUDBURY DISTRICT SERVICES BOARD
OTHER REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES

Schedule of Revenue and Expenditures
Year ended December 31, 2019 with comparative figures for 2018

2019
Budget
$

2019
Actual
$

2018
Actual
$

99,163
130,578

265,545
280
130,578

245,179
5,539
26,895
127,578

229,741

396,403

405,191

188,229
99,163
-

97,741
99,163
280
-

132,127
99,163
5,539
26,895

Total expenditures

287,392

197,184

263,724

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures before net
transfers (to) from reserves

(57,651)

199,219

141,467

188,229
(130,578)

97,741
(182,624)

132,127
(182,662)

57,651

(84,883)

(50,535)

-

114,336

90,932

-

(82,383)

70,243
(84,891)

-

31,953

76,284

Revenue
Interest income
NOSDA
TWOMO Subsidy
Other
Total revenue
Expenditures
IT expenses
Municipal apportionment
NOSDA expenses
Election expenses

Transfer from reserves - current
Transfer to reserves - current
Net transfer to reserves
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures before
undernoted items
Capital assets included in expenditures
Amortization of capital assets
Excess of revenue over expenditures
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MANITOULIN-SUDBURY DISTRICT SERVICES BOARD

SCHEDULE 7

OTHER REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES

Schedule of Continuity of Reserves
Year ended December 31, 2019

Working Funds
$

Tech
Refresh
$

Benefits
Reserve
$

Vehicle and
Equipment
Replacement
Reserve
$

Social Housing
Capital Funds
$

Total
$

RESERVES
Balance, beginning of year

1,517,082

213,773

518,606

492,327

1,597,957

4,339,745

173,442

27,837

188,116

94,541

127,875

611,811

1,690,524

241,610

706,722

586,868

1,725,832

4,951,556

Transfers:
Appropriations from (to) current
Balance, end of year

26

2020 First Quarter Activity Report
May 28, 2020
The following is the most recent consolidated Quarterly Report that the DSB will be
sending to member municipalities and posting on the public website. Expect Quarterly
Reports in February, May, September, and November of each year.
The program statistics are provided separately and updated monthly. They are available
on the website by clicking the following link: Monthly Program Statistics

CAO Overview
The DSB 2020 First Quarter (Unaudited) Financial Report was presented to the Board
and projects a year-end municipal deficit of $102,817. This deficit includes Ontario
Works forecasted to be on budget. Children’s Services is forecasted to be on. Social
Housing is forecasted to be under budget by $166,823. Paramedic Services is forecasted
to be over budget by $287,183. Interest revenue on non-reserve accounts is forecasted
to be a $17,543 surplus over budget.
The DSB quarterly financial reports are available on the DSB website by clicking the
following link:
Quarterly Financial Reports

Paramedic Services
2020 Hiring Process
Paramedic Services closed the posting for the 2020 annual external Paramedic hiring
during the first quarter. The posting was for up to 10 positions. As a direct result of the
COVID-19 pandemic, a decision was made to suspend the process until such time as
processes could be developed to ensure safety of candidates and DSB staff. Work
commenced with existing partners, including Interdev and Laidlaw and Associates for the
development of virtual testing capacity. The hiring process and orientation is expected to
resume during the second quarter.
Non-Urgent LHIN Project
In the first quarter of 2020, the DSB hired new members for operation of the non-urgent
pilot project. This pilot project was originally approved for a 6 month trial period in spring
of 2013. There has been no decision related to a permanent model. The DSB continues
to work with Manitoulin Health Centre and Espanola Regional Hospital to manage the

movements of their non-urgent patient population, allowing for mitigation of Paramedic
Service degradation. In the summer of 2019, funding for the non-urgent system was
transferred from Ontario Health to the partner hospitals. This change in funding has
resulted in system changes where funding is limited to patients from those facilities.
Community Safety and Wellness Planning
Paramedic Services continued its work with municipal partners to help develop
Community Safety and Wellness Plans in accordance with the prescribed timelines. The
municipal partners all approved the development of joint plans for the areas of Manitoulin
Island, LaCloche Foothills, Sudbury East, and The Chapleau area. Public surveys were
developed and released by each group during the first quarter of 2020. The results of
these surveys will allow for further design development over the coming months. The
declaration of a Provincial State of Emergency in the first quarter has slowed the ability
for staff and municipalities to meet to confirm working groups, however staff continue to
work in the background to establish framework documents.
COVID-19 Pandemic Response
The first quarter of 2020 marked the start of the COVID-19 global pandemic, impacting
every person. Paramedic Services has focused a large number of its resources on
assisting with planning, response, and eventually recovery from this event. In March,
Paramedic Services responded to a request to develop and deploy a COVID-19
Response Team to perform community-based testing of the public. The rationale was to
help ensure separation of potential patients from at risk populations, and from health care
facilities.
The COVID-19 response also required a significant effort by logistics staff in order to
ensure an appropriate level of personal protective equipment was available. In a number
of instances, staff had to work with Provincial partners and other vendors to source items
that had become impossible to obtain. This effort by staff had a significant impact on the
service’s ability to ensure paramedic and patient safety.

Children’s Services
Licensed Child Care During a Labour Disruption
On January 15th, staff were copied on a memo sent to licensed child care providers. The
memo highlights the Ministry of Education’s (MEDU) commitment to ensuring children are
in safe and healthy environments during education sector labour negotiations. Escalating
job action could require parents to make alternative arrangements for their kindergarten
and school-age children. Full day child care centres located in schools may also be
impacted in the event of school closures.
The Minister of Education announced that the government is launching Support for
Parents, an initiative that will provide financial support to parents of eligible children for
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each day of school that is missed on account of the labour disruption. Parents with
children attending school-based child care centres that are closed on account of the
labour disruption will also be able to receive support.
Child Care Funding Formula
On February 27, 2020 the DSB approved the Child Care Funding Formula – Issue Report
and directed staff to action the recommendations contained within the report.
The Ministry of Education provides funding for CMSMs/DSSABs that is founded on a
proportionate allocation of specific types of funding based on identified data elements.
The Ministry of Education is currently undertaking a full review of the formula and funding
model for the Child Care programs under the Service Management of the 47
CMSMs/DSSABs.
Canada uses three low-income measures: Low Income Cut Off (LICO), Low Income
Measures (LIM) and a Market Basket Measure. LICO’s drawback is that it does not factor
in cost of living in different places. For example, people in the rural north typically have
higher heating costs, gas costs, food costs, transportation costs, than those in the rural
south, etc. This can make things difficult when comparing poverty levels in different
regions. It tends to understate poverty in the north.
Currently the MEDU formula uses LICO as a data element to provide additional funding
for low-income families. There is one pot of money earmarked for low-income families
and MEDU distributes it based on LICO data from Statistics Canada.
According to LICO, 4.3% of the population in Manitoulin-Sudbury are low-income
compared to 9.8% of the population in Ontario as a whole. This means that ManitoulinSudbury receives proportionately less low-income funding compared to other places in
the province.
If LIM was used instead, the percentage of population in low-income in ManitoulinSudbury and Ontario are the same at 14.4%. This means Manitoulin-Sudbury would
receive low-income funding that is on par with the provincial average.
The DSB and the member municipalities that are part of the DSB recognize the
importance of quality and affordable child care programs and the positive impacts that
such programs have on community well-being and creating inclusive communities.
The DSB and member Municipalities demanded that the Minister of Education address
the funding inequities that have been created by the current funding model for Northern
Ontario. All 18 member municipalities were asked to pass similar resolutions supporting
this resolution which would be shared with the Honorable Doug Ford, Premier of Ontario
and the Honourable Stephen Lecce, Minister of Education, FONOM, NOMA, AMO and
OMSSA.
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Ontario Works
Ontario Works Caseload
In the first quarter of 2020, the Ontario Works/Temporary Care caseload average is 535
Compared to last year at this time, the caseload has decrease by 4%.
Ontario’s Poverty Reduction Strategy
The Ministry of Children, Community and Social Services in collaboration with other
ministries across government, is currently assessing the Ontario's Poverty Reduction
Strategy and is launching consultations to inform the development of a new five-year
strategy, in accordance with the Poverty Reduction Act, 2009. The Ministry’s goal is to
drive progress and identify solutions to reduce poverty. To inform their new Poverty
Reduction Strategy, they will be asking Ontario residents how they can encourage job
creation and connect people to employment; provide people with the right supports and
services; and lower the cost of living and make life more affordable.
Employment Services Transformation
The Ministry of Labour, Training and Skills Development has selected service system
managers for three previously identified catchment areas, where the prototype for the
new employment services model will begin. Unfortunately, though some municipalities
put in bids, none were selected.
The service system managers are:
•
•
•

A consortium led by Fedcap for Hamilton-Niagara Peninsula (which is a U.S. based
non-profit organization that provides vocational training);
Fleming College for Muskoka-Kawarthas (which is a College), and
WCG, part of the APM Group for Peel (an Australia-based private sector firm (the
Canadian subsidiary of for-profit Australian company).

Employment Services
The DSB continues to deliver Employment Ontario programs in the Chapleau North area.
In the first quarter, 566 individuals accessed our Employment Resource Centre. The DSB
staff are working very closely with local employers and have also been working closely
with First Nations communities.
The DSB continues to build and maintain relationships with community stakeholders for
the benefit of our participants. These relationships can be used as a resource or tool to
assist our clients in establishing a better quality of life.
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Update on Employment Ontario Allocations for 2020-21
The Ministry of Labour, Training and Skills Development has made some decisions
regarding the 2020-21 allocation exercise for the Literacy and Basic Skills, Employment
Service, Youth Job Connection, Youth Job Connection: Summer and Canada-Ontario
Job Grant programs. Given the current context with the Global COVID-19 pandemic, the
ministry’s approach will be to maintain status quo funding, at 2019-2020 funding levels,
for all service providers and programs across the province for the next fiscal year.
In Employment Services Transformation prototype communities, service providers
delivering in-scope programs will receive a six-month transfer payment agreement at
status quo funding. This will support continuity of services for communities and individuals
as they address this rapidly evolving situation

Community Housing
Waiting list (Applicants)
At March 31, 2020, the number of waiting applicants decreased by 1%. A breakdown of
the applicants is as follows:
1 Bedroom
3 Bedroom

414
45

(-22)
(0)

2 Bedroom
4 bedroom

56 (+2)
28 (+1)

Total applications to end of quarter is 543.
Direct Shelter Subsidy (DSS)
Staff continue to identify and complete the application process with eligible applicants for
the DSS program. All applicants receiving the benefit are deemed housed. As of the end
of this quarter there were 228 active DSS recipients.
Income Mixing
Per DSB Policy, every effort is being made where the waitlist allows, to mix the
Community Housing Buildings with RGI, Affordable and Market Rent Tenants. We have
secured 10 full market rent tenants and 36 affordable rent tenants throughout the portfolio
as of the end of the first quarter.
Canada-Ontario Housing Benefit
This program will provide a portable housing benefit directly to Ontario Households. It is
set to begin in April 2020. The DSB has lobbied the government to allow us to deliver our
5

own Direct Shelter Subsidy program rather than delivering this approach program across
the Province.
The Canada-Ontario Housing Benefit will be determined, calculated and payments will be
managed by the Ministry of Finance. The benefit calculation will be based on the
difference between 80 per cent of average market rent and 30 per cent of monthly income.
This program only considers the rent component of someone’s shelter expenses.
The program will provide a total of $92,420 over a two year period to assist households
approved by the DSB.
•
•

2020-21: $70,534
2021-22: $21,886

Rent Geared-to-Income Simplification
Based on the analysis completed the tenant impact is positive whereby 85% have a
decrease in the rent and 15% will have a rental increase. Although the DSB will see an
initial decrease in rental revenue, staff are satisfied that any decrease will be offset by the
continued income-mixing of each building. The changes will be implemented effective
July 1, 2020.
Housing and Homelessness Plan – Enumeration
The DSB completed and submitted the 5-year housing and homelessness plan. With
respect to homeless enumeration, the Ministry plans to implement a by-name list
approach beginning in 2021. Service Managers in many Ontario communities are
implementing by-name lists to provide real-time data about people experiencing
homelessness in their communities. The Ministry will work collaboratively with
stakeholders over the coming months, on the implementation of a by-name list approach
to ensure that future requirements are focused on achieving the best and most costeffective outcomes for Ontarians.
Protecting Tenants and Strengthening Community Housing Act, 2020
On March 12, 2020, the government introduced the Protecting Tenants and
Strengthening Community Housing Act. The Bill proposes amendments to the Residential
Tenancies Act, Housing Services Act, Building Code Act, and proposes the Ontario
Mortgage and Housing Corporation Repeal Act.
The proposed amendments to the Residential Tenancies Act, the Housing Services Act,
and Building Code Act, are part of the following:
•

More Homes, More Choice: Ontario’s Housing Supply Action Plan to make it
faster and easier to build housing, including rental housing, and to build the right
types of homes in the right places.
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•

Community Housing Renewal Strategy: a multi-year strategy to stabilize and
grow Ontario’s community housing sector; and

•

Transforming the Delivery of Building Code Services: by enabling the creation
of a future administrative authority that would deliver faster, better, and smarter
services to support the safe construction of buildings, while continuing to protect
public health and safety.

If passed by the Legislature, specific details would need to be developed in regulation.
The province intends to move quickly, working with sector partners, to develop regulations
so that rules can be in place before the majority of original agreements start to end in
2022-23.
Infrastructure & Asset Management
Work Orders
During the first quarter of 2020, a total of 270 Work Orders were generated: 215 for
Community Housing; 12 for Administration Offices, and 43 for Paramedic Services. There
was a total of 207 Work Orders closed or resolved during that time.
New Horizons for Seniors – Grant Project
In 2019 the DSB was successful in receiving a grant through the New Horizons for Seniors
of $25,000. This program intends to provide funding to promote inclusion of seniors. The
project that we submitted involved converting the two Public Washrooms into 1 fully
accessible Public Washroom that would be available for all residents and Public to
participate in activities that would be hosted in the Common Room such as Community
Paramedicine, Community Tax Clinics, Lunches hosted by CMHA, and Community
Information Sessions.
Summary
The DSB had a very busy first quarter. If municipal Councils have any questions or would
like DSB staff to attend a municipal Council meeting, please feel free to contact me at the
address below.

Fern Dominelli
Chief Administrative Officer
Manitoulin-Sudbury District Services Board
Phone: 705-222-7777
E mail: fern.dominelli@msdsb.net
Website: www.msdsb.net
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Manitoulin-Sudbury DSB
1st Quarter Report (Unaudited)
AS AT 3/31/2020
Municipal Share Budget

Total Gross Budget
YTD
ACTUAL
Ontario Works
100% Funded

$
$

427,201
1,630,663

YTD
BUDGET
$
$

590,050
1,661,362

OVER(UNDER)
BUDGET
$
$

ANNUAL
BUDGET

(162,849) $
(30,699) $

2,444,299
6,645,448

YTD
MUNICIPAL
$

198,044

MUNICIPAL
SHARE
Forecast

MUNICIPAL
SHARE
BUDGET

Over(Under)
Budget
Forecast

$

1,030,000

$

1,030,000

$

-

$

668,038

$

-

Child Care

$

2,090,509

$

2,087,038

$

3,471

$

8,379,683

$

167,010

$

.
668,038

Social Housing
100% Funded

$
$

635,387
125,320

$
$

798,071
127,467

$
$

(162,684) $
(2,147) $

3,052,180
509,870

$

635,387

$

2,060,837

$

2,227,660

$

(166,823)

Paramedic Services

$

3,918,082

$

4,177,397

$

(259,315) $

14,853,647

$

1,910,343

$

7,271,895

$

6,784,712

$

487,183

100% Funded

$

768,428

$

650,021

$

$

9,595,590

$ 10,091,406

$

11,030,770

$

10,710,410

$

320,360

TOTAL EXPENSES

Interest Revenue $

TOTAL EXPENSES

$

118,407

$

2,600,089

$

(495,817) $

38,485,216

$

2,910,783

(46,682) $
(24,792) $
9,548,907 $ 10,066,615 $

(21,891) $
(517,707) $

(99,163)
38,386,053

$
$

(46,682) $
2,864,101 $

(116,706) $
10,914,064 $

(99,163) $
10,611,247 $

(17,543)
302,817

Variance Analysis March 31, 2020
Actual to NET Municipal
Budget
Variance
Ontario
$
Works

-

Child
$
Care

-

Explanation of Unaudited Municipal Share
Municipal share of administration expenses are forecasted to be on budget.

Municipal share of Child Care expenses is forecasted to be on budget.
($103,180) + ($62,324) + ($1,319) = ($166,823) surplus
Federal Funding is forecasted to be ($103,180) more than budgeted.

Social
$
Housing

Direct operated rev & exp and program support allocation is forecasted to be ($62,324) under budget
- Rental Revenues are forecasted to be ($14,595) more than budgeted.
(166,823) - Direct operating expenses are forecasted to be ($11,265) under budget due to:
utilities and taxes ($11,872) under budget, salaries & benefits for custodians $12,879 over budget, maintenance expenses
over budget $31,976, other administrative expenses under budget ($28,777), administration wages & benefits are
forecasted to be (15,471) under budget
- Program Support Allocation is forecasted to be ($36,464) under budget.
Non-Profit, Rent Supp, and Urban Native expenses are forecasted to be ($1,319) under budget.

Paramedic Services is forecasted to be $37,981 + $449,202 = $487,183 over budget.
The MOH funding is forecasted to be less than budgeted by $37,981 deficit, this is due to 2020 Funding not allocated as of
report date. The forecast is based on the actual funding received.

Paramedic
$
Services

487,183

Medic Staffing is forecasted to be over budget by $211,711 due to:
- Regular Wages are forecasted to be under budget by ($309); Covid related wages are forecasted to be $200,000; Other
Wages are forecasted to be under budget by ($19,241): Replacement wages are forecasted to be over budget by $31,261.
- Benefits are forecasted to be over budget by $218,509; due to WSIB NEER.
Administration Wages and Benefits are forecasted to be ($1,907) under budget
Non Wages are forecasted to be over budget by $20,889.
- Program Support is forecasted to be ($59,381) under budget
- Transportation & Communication is forecasted to be ($4,694) under budget
- Vehicle repairs and maintenance is forecasted to be $51,790 over budget
- Building repairs and maintenance, grounds and utilities are forecasted to be $37,222 over budget
- Supplies are forecasted to be ($4,048) under budget.

Interest
$
Revenue

$

(17,543) Interest Revenue is forecasted to be $17,543 more than budgeted which results in a municipal surplus.

302,817

